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THE BRIGHTON HOUSE· AS IT APPEARED IN 1850. 

Small frame structure occupies the present site of the Brighton German Bank. 





PREFACE. 

UPON the_ generally accepted fact that that portion of th~ great 

Queen City of the West known as Brighton-both the Brighton 

of to-day and that of bygone years-furnishes more interesting 

and important historical facts and traditional memories, and takes 

the present generation back to the primitive days more vividly and t6 . 
I 

better advantage than any other specific locality in or about the city, 

the value of this worla is calculated . 
.. 

The authenticity of ~he facts herein set forth mayo~ relied upon, 

as special efforts have been put forth to thoroughly verify each and 

every statement. yarious histories of Cincinnati have been consulted 

and conversations have been had with many pioneers whose memories 

are trustworthy and reliable. No available source of informatio°: 

has been left unsearch~d and no effort spared to produce a work that 

should satisfy the expectations of those interested in the past, present 

and future of Brighton. 

Beginning with the earliest that Brighton had to do with 

history, her settlement, the hardships, trials and peculiarities of the 

people of the frontier period, the advancement, growth and develope~ 

ment until she has been transformed into a busy, wealthy, prosperous 

and progressive commercial and industrial community, this book has 

been made and is presented for the good it may do in perpetuating 

treasured traditions, and by linking the past with the present anJ 

the future. 
MAX. MOSLER, 

JACOB HOFFMANN, 

JAMES D. SMITH. 



HERMAN WESSEL, MRS. 11. SAIDE, 
Wholesale and Retail 
Manufacturer of : : : 

DEALER. IN 

Mattresses and Bedding, 

FEATHERS and COTS A SPECIALTY. 

17 East Fifth Street, 

Fashionable Millinery. 

DRY GOODS, NOTIONS, and LADIES' 

and GENTS' FURNISHING GOO,DS. 

LADIES' OUTFITS. 

Fountain Square. 

Telephone Main 2198. 2201-3 Colerain Avenue. 

Jt,SEt,H DUMeNT, 
Wholesale and Retail Grocer, 

COFFEE, TEA and FLOUR A SPECIAL TY. 1213 Harrison Avenue. 

Telephone, \Vest 1337 R. 

GEE,R6E STEGNER, 

----- Daily Meat Market --~ 
Dealer in FRESH and SALT MEATS, PORK, 1215 H · A B k S 
BEEF, VEAL, ETC. STRICTLY FIRST CLASS. . arrison ve., cor. UC t. 

Telephone West 844. 

BRIGHTe>N JJAINT STeRE, 
CHAS. J. HARDIG, Prop. 

Jobber and Dealer in VARNISHES, .,AC Manufacturer of "BULL D00" Pure 
PAINTS, BRUSHES, GLASS, ETC. Prepared Paints and Colors in Oil. 

1106 Harrison Ave., 2207 Colerain Ave. Phone \Vest 808. 

Suppose 
YOU TRY US 
the next time 
you have 
work for 
The Tinner 
and want First 
Class Work. 

ehas. 
Kobmann, 

1919 Central Ave. 

Yoder Bath House, 
1942 eENTRAL AVE. 

Hot and Cold Filtered Water. 

Day and Night. 

T"'adies any Day Except Saturday. 

Open Daily from 7 A. M. to 9 P. M. 

Friday and Saturday, no time for closing. 

Opp. Mohawk Single Baths. • • • 15 eents 
25 eents 
Sl.00 

Bridge.. Two Tickets. • • 
'Phone M. 2342. Nine Tickets. • • • 
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Sketched by Johu l{t:tLig. from description. 

COASTIN' DOWN BA YMILLER. 
<By JACOB HOFFMANN.) 

I tell you boys, t'was lots of fun 
In the good old days gone by, 
As with our sleds we used to run 
uut in the cold and snow so high. 

To go coastin' down Baymiller. 

There were sleds of every kind and size ; 
Some painted red and some of them blue ; 
Each one to it's owner a treasure, a prize, 
As merrily shouting "Heigh-ho,'' we new 

A kitin' down Baymiller. 

The Allen boys each one had a sled; 
There were Johnny and Patsey, you know; 
Their little flat carts o'er white,· snowy b~d, 
\Vith frolicsome burden, cheeks all aglow, 

Came a slidin' down Baymiller. 

The Felix's (Charley, Ed, Billy and Lou). 
Patrioric it looked, with national shield, 
:\nd big enough for a family or two, 
\Vhen to such sport inclined to yield 

As ridin' down Baymiller. 

Tony Sauer and Joh11, Jack Faeth. Jack Kres1.., 
The Muth, the Loesch and the Deremo boy~, 
The Jun_gs and the Odenbachs, happy none less. 
Came fully equipped to share the joys 

Of whizzin' down Baymiller. 

· Baums there were three (George, Henry and Eddie) 
And then the Panceras (Jake, Charlie and Joe), 
The Decks and the Bickenhaeusers ever were ready, 
So too. the O'LeHrys and Welshes to go 

A spinnin' down B:tymiller. 

Olie Maas and the l\Ieisters (Paul, George and Chris), 
The Kabels and Duff ys were there from the start, 
The Oelgoetze!t, Reynolds' and Scheeses ne'er miss~d 
Showing up in time to take their part 

In whirlin: down Baymiller 

Lou Reehl and the Dreyers (Alfred and Fred , 
Gus Hanson, Fritz Maegley, like all true boys, 
The Taubalds, the Ritzers and Schaurers all sped 
Through health-givinJ{ space, with good-natured noise 

A rollin' down Baymiller. 

Talk about your dumb-bells and Gym·! 
We none ot us neede,j then1 then; 
We kept our brawn an<l brain in trim 
By running and shouting, and again and again 

A flyin' down Baymiller. 



THE e1NelNN1\TI BUTeHER5' SUPPLY (!t). 
1986•2000 @entral avenue, <!incinnati, ~. 

We wish to 
figure with 
you on 

Refrigera-
tors, 

Store and 
Office 
Fixtures 
for all 

purposes. 

ALL KINDS OF MEAT CUTTING TOOLS. 

Manufacturers of the beautiful White Chinalain Residence Refrigerators. The most 
hygiene and cleanest refrigerators in the world. Send for catalogue . 

. TELEPHONE M. 2328. 

ESTABLISHED 1852. 

The Brighton 
Hardware Store. 

Complete Line of Builders' and 
General Hardware. 

2139 £tntral .Hvt., £1ndnnati, o. 
Near Freeman. 

Established in Brighton in 1876. 

Mrs. M . . Saeger, 
GROCERY AND 

DAILY nARKET, 

1983 eentral Ave. 

Dealer in every article to be 
found in a first-class grocery. 

Best goods only, at lowest . 
prices. ., 

POULTRY A SPECIALTY. 
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HISTORIC BRIGHTON. 

Sweet clime of my kindred, blest place of my birth­
The fairest, the dearest, the brightest on earth, 
Where'er I may roam, howe'er blest I may be, 
My spirit instinctively turns unto thee. 

_ ... ta,b '• ;· m: RIG llTON, as a factor in history, was one of the rudiments 

j
~ I ... in the making of Cincinnati. The memory of man to-day 

• • • 

0

_ scarce goes back to the time when Brighton was not. 
'7fi ~ It stands to-day one of the potent elements of the great indus­

trial and commercial city, a monument to the thrift, energy 
and pluck of the men who have been its children and who 
have contributed to its progress from the day of its inception 

down to the present time. 
The history of Brighton goes back beyond the beginning of the 

century we have just left behind. It was in the latter part of the 
eighteenth century that the foundation was laid. Then was the 
beginning of the crude life of the brave and heroic frontierman, 
whose battles and labors have born fruit that is just ripening for the 
enjoyment and benefit of the present-day generation. They sowed 
seed in rich soil the growth of which is now to be harvested. 

Col. John Riddle, a New Jersey imigran t, was the first settler of 
Brighton. Westward bound he made his way to thi8 section and 
early in 1790 secured employment shoeing horses in the garrison at 
old Fort Washington. It was later in the same year that he pur­
chased of Judge Symmes a section of land two miles north west of the 
village. This was one of the early land transactions, the considera­
tion for the transfer being 67 cents per acre. One corner of the track 
purchased by Riddle was near the site of the old Brighton House. 
In 1793 he built a house on what is now Alfred Street, where he 
settled and later erected what was until a few years ago known as 
the Riddle homestead. 

It was here that the Riddle family endured for years the hard­
ships of the early life of the new territory and experienced many 
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Brighton Ladies' Bazar 

S. HUTNER 
LADIES' AND GENTS' 

FURNISHING GOODS. 

Millinery and Shoes. 

. SKIRTS, CLOAKS AND SUITS 

A SPECIALTY. 

2153 and 2155 CENTRAL A VE. 

CINCINNATI, O. 

Maker of -

Awnings. i 
Tents 
and 
Paulins. 
'PHONE 
M 3921. 

Pi~ll 
Brand 
Slickers. 

HORSE and WAGON, and LARD 
PRESS COVERS. TANNERS' HOSE. 

284 ST ARK STREET, 
Repair Work given 

prompt attention. 
Near Mohawk 

Bridge. 

Queen City Bottling Works, 
WM. HECKERMANN & CO. 

WM. HECKERMANN. 

MANUFACTCRERSAND 

BOTTLERS OF : : : : 

Mineral and 
Seiters Water. 
TELEPIIONE MAIN 2484. 

Factory: 1617, 1619 and 1621 WALNUT ST., QNCINNATI,~O. 

-8-



Mr,;:, J. L. Enyart. 
R. F. Enyart. 

Col. John Riddle. 
Daniel Gano. 

Stephen Gano, Sr. 



The J. H. Day Co. 
1J44 HARRISON AVENUE, CI;·lCINNA TI, OHIO. 

N .. Y. OFFICE: 76 PARK PLACE. 

Jl,Jl,Jl,JAJI, 

Manufacturers of High Grade 

Bakers' Machinery, 

Laboratory Machinery, 

Joseph H. Wolf 
2163, 2165, 2167 CENTRAL A VE. 

WHOLESALE AND RETAIL 

DEALER IN 

Oats, 

Salt, 

Hay 

Corn, Bran, 

Corn Meal, 

and Straw. 

Oil Meal, 

Middlings, 

DEALER IN 

Lime, Cement, 

Plaster Paris, 

Sewer Pipe, 
Chimney Tops 

and Fire Clay. 

TELEHONE, VIEST 856. 

Painters' Machinery, 

Special Machinery. 

Established 1850, Brighton, Cin., 0. 

J. B. Lagemann. 
Dealer in 

OROCERIE.S, SEEDS 
and PAIN'T S, 

2159 and 2161 Central Ave. 

JI, JI, Jl,JI, 

Also DRY OOODS and NOTIONS. 

t 103 Harrison Ave. 

,JI JI, JI, JI, 

SPECIAL TIES. 

Garden Seeds, 
Window Glass, 
Powder and Shot, 
Wooden Shoes, 
Cigars and Tobacco, 
Fencing, Etc., 

Mixed Paints. 
All Kinds Oil, 
Twines and Rope, 
Hot Bed Sash, 
Fine Dress Goods, 
Feathers. 

·m. Wtisbrodt & Son 
Wine 
House, 

No. 2J09 CENTRAL A VE. 

GRAPE GROWERS. 
And Wholesale and Retail 

Dealers in Native Wines. 
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sensational encounters with the hostile Indians, who abounded in 
such numbers and were so troublesome that the goverument found it 
necessary to establish a block-house for the protection of the settlers 
and travelers. This block-house was one of the earliest public insti­
tutions in this part of the country. It stood on the ground that was 
afterward known as Millward's Circle, where was erected by an 
Englishman named Millward a large circular building, which was 
operated.as the first malt house in this section. The property later 
became known as the Renner Malt House, located on Colerain 
Avenue. 

The early possessions of Col. Riddle comprised a vast domain. 
He was literally monarch of all he surveyed. The boundaries of what 
he laid claim to, and rightfully, were Mill Creek, Clifton AvenuP, 
Harrison Avenue, Riddle Road and Center Street. This formed a 
great acreage of wild and barren waste. 

This was before tbe days of public highways and made thorough­
fares and what was afterward Hamilton Road, now McMicken Avenue, 
was at that time an almost indiscernible Indian trail, which had its 
otigin at a point near the present site of the Court House, which was 
at that' time the northern terminus of Main Street. The trail 
extended northernly to about the present intersection of Main Street 
and McMicken Avenue and thence north and west through the 
Mohawk settlement, which is now Mohawk Place. 

At this point, after the cons.ruction of the Miami Canal in 1826, 
a wooden bridge spanned the canal, beyond which the trail was 
conjoined by another which was later made a highway known as 
Western Row, now Central Avenue. 'I'his led on to the present 
Colerain Avenue, continuing thence to Hamilton, forming the original 
route survey of Hamilton Road. 

The first settlement of Mohawk goes back beyond the recollection 
of anyone living today. Its earliest history has been obliterated by 
time. While the work of the construction of the canal was in progress 
during the first quarter of the nineteenth century the settlement 
experienced what would now be called a boom, its population being 
materially increased. Evidentes of its antiquity were found recently 
in excavations for new buildings there, where were found fragments 
of an old tombstone upon which was discernible an inscription of the 
date of 1822. 

Bull Head Tavern was the one notable public resort in the early 
days of the Mohawk settlement. It was conducted by a man named 
Dobson and was the general stop-over place of all travelers goh1g that 
way. The old building, which long ago bore the marks of the ravages 
of time, stands where afterward was located Wuest Bros.' wagon 
works. Near this tavern wa~ the business place of A. T. Wir-
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Smoke WESSEL' S Michael & Charles f elix, 
WINE AND BEER 
~JJ. SALOON .Jl..:r-

Straight Nickel Cigar. 
c.::--•~ 

Manufactured and Sold 
only at FINE \VIIISKIES A SPECIALTY. 

2200 CENTRAL A VENUE, 2!00 CENTRAL AVE. 

CINCINNATI, O. Cor. Baymiller. 

ALBERT BECKER, 
ELECTRICIAN, 

. ELECTRIC LIGHT WIRING, 

INTERIOR TELEPHONE SYSTEMS 

A SPECIAL TY. 

Palace Hotel Bldg., 8 W. 6th St. 

'PHONE MAIN 3110. CINCINNATI, 0. 

Established 50 Years. ALFRED WHITE'S SONS. :~~~~::~rJ::iness. 

GRANITE AND JI& eJ& eJ& 

MARBLE MONUMENTS. 
MARKERS FROM 

$5.00 UP. 

WORKS : at Chester Park and 325 an<l 327 West Fifth Street. 

THE CINCINNATI RAILROAD OMNIBUS COMPANY. 
SAM'I4 BAILEY, JR., President. W. M. DAVIS, Superintendent; 

520 RAeE STREET, Near Longworth. 
CA.RRRIAGE, COUPE and BAGGAGE EXPRESS. The only line connecting with 

all railroads and steamboats. Calls anywhere in city or suburbs. Baggage 
checked direct from your house to destination. We deliver 

and place trunks in your rooms in suburbs. 
TELEPHONE MA I~ 900. 

C. R. FISHBURN', President. J. GEO. ENGEL, Sec. and Treas. 

THE SNOW FLAKE LAUNDRY CO. 
Telephone Main 833. 

GOODS CALLED FOR 
A_NO DELIVERED Office and Worl!s: 1218-1220 Race St. 

SCHONEBERGE~ & CO. F. J. MEDER, 
aw.SCHONEBERGER,Mg~ 

SAND BLAST MACHINES aml 
GLASS CHIPPING PLANT~. 

WINE AND BEER SALOON, 

A~D BOARDIXG HQllSE. 

1217 Poplar St., Cincinnati, 0. 21!2 and 2144 Central Avenue. 
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Iiams, which was the peculiar corabination of wagon shop and grocery. 
It was here that many of the settlers were wont to gather and spend 
their leisure hours. On the other side of the tavern was a general 
store owned by Captain James Brown. In the near neighborhood 
Jacob Renner conducted a slaughter house. 

John Fieber was one of the big men of that day. He owned a 
pork killing• establishment the capacity of which was one hog a day. 
The output was made by the proprietor, who, after dressing the hog, 
would take it to market on a wheelbarrow. William Reynolds, grand­
father of R~bert R. Reynolds, President of the Ice Delivery Com­
pany, was the village blacksmith, and Edward Stewart was a carpenter 
who built many of the houses in the settlement, some of which are 
still standing. . 

One of the well remembered features here was a treadmill pro­
pelled by a big dog and a wolf to pump water to supply the tannery 
of Joshua Gibbons, which was locatt!d about where is now the corner 
of Cl~rkson street. . The dog and the wolf tread the mill during the 
whole of the working day furnishing the entire water supply for the 
plant which was in those days considered of great proportions. 

Brighton proper of the early days was located at the intersection 
of Harrison and Colerain Avenues, where a number of small houses 
comprised the settlement. At the northwest corner was located the 
Zenith Inn, a hostelry of wide renown,- owned and managed by Zenjth 
Johnson, a Yankee. It was an architectural monumeµt of its day, 
plain, simple but substantial, built of brick, two stories high and 
contained about ten 1 ooms. History fails to tell when this structure 
was built, but it had stood through the storms of many scores of 
winters when it gave way to the Brighton House, which afterward 
becan1e one of the most notable and far-fa med hotels in the land. 

In its day the Zenith Inn was the center of the compass in the 
estimation of the inhabitants and for their calculations. It was the 
point from which all measurements and considerations were_ made. 
Many of the property deeds executed in the early days describe the 
property transferred as being so and so many. feet, more or less, north 
or south, etc., from Zenith Johnson's Inn. At this time Harrison 
pike ran on the north side of the inn. 

Up to about the year 1840 much of the land property for mile"1 
around Brighton was owned by but a few men. John Riddle's holdings 
had be~n but little divided, if at all; and Samuel J. Browne, from 
whom Browne Street, now McMicken Avenue, derived its nan1e, owned 
about 20 acres located on the north side of the canal, extending to 
the brow of Brighton Hil 1. His residence was located about the. 
center of his possession, where now stands the Twenty-eighth 
District school building. A large tract lJ ing between the, canal, 
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KEY TO ILLUSTRATION ON OPPOSITE PAGE. 

1-2-Mr. and Mrs. Franz deCorrevont. 3-Mrs. \Vm. Bromley. 4-5-Mr. and Mrs. Herman Dierkes· 
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ESTABLISHED 1852. 

Deremo' s Shoe Store, 

2115 CENTRAL AVE. 

Men's, Ladies', Misses' 

at1d Children's Shoes. 

ELIZABETH SIEGMANN, Manager 

E~T A BLISH ED ~863. 

fitnry Wagntr' s Sons, 
Manufacturers of 

TRUNKS, S.-' MPLE CASES, 
TELESCOPES, ETC. 
Sample Trunks and Repairing 
a Specialty. 

TELEPHONES Nos. 1565 and 3212 MAIN. 

237 Walnut and 335 W. 4th St. 

Cincinnati, 0. 

Z um 1J3ay¢risch¢n 1Raths = 1lt¢ll¢r, 
CONRAD MEISTER. 

2019 CENTRAL AVE., Cor. Baymiller St., CINCINNATI, O. 

The Kelly Coal Co. 
ALL KINDS OF 

COAL AND COKE 
TELEPHONE MAIN tll06. 

125 W. FRONT S_TREET, 

QNCINNATI, 0. 

H. F. FINKE, 
Insurance in 
all its Branches. 
TELEPHONE MAIN 447. 

OFFICE: 125 E. THIRD ST. 

CINQNNA TI, 0. 
----- ----------

Port Thomas Exchange, 
M. W. THOMAS, Prop. 

Choice Wines, Liquors and the 
Celebrated Lager Beer "Golden Days," TELEPHONE WEST 1019. 

COR. SPRING GROVE AND HARRISON AVES. 
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Wh Y E t H , Get the BEST; en OU <I one) None ,, Just as 

Good" as MUTH'S He)NEY. Sold here for forty years. Don't 

be fooled. Ask your Grocer. 

The Fred. W. Muth eo. 
FRONT AND WALNUT ST., CINCINNATI, O. 

TELEPHONE MAIN 3614. 

<!. H. W. WEBER, 
Successor to CHAS F. MUTH & SON. 

Wholesale and Retail Dealer in 

PURE HONEY, BEESWAX, 

BEEKEEPERS' SUPPLIES, ETC. 

GOLDEN ITALIAN APIARY. 

Telephone W. 1162. 

2146 and 2148 Central Avenue, 

Cincinnati, 0. 

MOHAWK DRUG STORE. 

" The fierman Village '' 
PRED. WOLLNER, Prop. 

1403-05 CENTRAL A VENUE. 

TELEPHONE MA[N 2898 .. 

Hauck'sGolden Eagle Exclusively 

lDeutscbe Jpotbeke. 

GE0R6E EGER, Hpothecary, 
1933-1935 Central Ave., opp. Mohawk Bridge, Cincinnati, 0. 

PRESCRIPTIONS A SPECIALTY. ,JI· TELEPHONE, MAIN 2333. 

J. 6. Mc6arvey · & Son, 
e0NTRAeT0RS and 

BR-l<!KLAYERS. 

Office, 2131 Freeman Avenue, 

Cincinnati, 0. 

Adam N iemes, 
Importer of and Dealer in 

FOREIGN, NATIVE AND 

CALIFORNIA WINES. 

TELEPHONE MAIN 1148 X. 

1017 MAIN STREET, 
Between Court and Canal, 

CINCINNATI, O. 
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Mohawk bride, Bank Street and Baymiller Street was held by Curtis 
and Avery, and Daniel Gano owned all the land between Baymiller 
Street, Freeman Avenue. Hamilton Road and Bank Street, while 
John W. Coleman, from whom the street derives its name, laid claim 
to the tract bounded by Bank Street and Western Row or Central 
Avenue, Kindel Avenue and Riddle Street. 

During the first decade of the century Major Charles Clarkson 
was the owner of a large tract of land lying south of Bank Street, 
which he purchased from the Trollop f ainily, and upon which stood 
the residence afterwards occupied Ly the Clarksons. This house is 
still s1 anding on Bank Street, directly opposite Clarl:son Street, and 
is one of the oldest landmarks about Brighton. In ye olden time this 
was a n1ansion and an architectural wonder, and is remembered by 
many as having at one time been a school building. 

The whole of what is now Clifton was owned by Major Clarkson 
and named by him the Clarkson Clifton farm, hence the present n~me 
of the beautiful hill-top suburb .. This was the finest stock breeding 
farm west of the Alleghanies and was known far and near. 

Cincinnati began to show signs of growth and development 
early in the forties, at which time the corporation line was extended 
from Liberty Street and Western Row to include all the territory east 
of Millcreek and south of Alfred Street. This was the first annexa­
tion of which there is any- historical record and br~ught Brighton 
into the city. This change and the fact that the best avenues of 
travel leading into the city passed through Brighton brought many 
investors and speculators to this section. As a result real- estate and 
other values went up and there was considerable of a boom. 

The early forties witnessed the crude beginning of what after­
ward developed into the great pork packing industry that thrived in 
this locality. Clearwater Creek, having its origin in the Mohawk 
ravine, was a small stream running between Bank Street and 
Hamilton Road and emptying into Millcreek. Many butchers and 
tanners established their plants here, erecting buildings along the 
bank of the creek, many of which are still standing. With these 
killing houses in operation, the offall from which was emptied into 
the stream the·name was soon changed to Bloody Run. 

The Clearwater distillery was located on the bank of this creek 
in a hollow, back of Weiss' pork house near Bank Street and Freeman 
A venue, about 1845. 

Brighton gave Cincinnati the name of "Porkopolis," and it was this 
little creek that afforded the opportunity for this section to becon1e 
famous as the greatest hog and cattle killing locality in the country. The 
industry:grew and expanded until later it became the chief one of the 
city. It was during the latter part of the first half of the century that the 
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first business rivalry sprung up that fostered the industry. This was 
between Clearwater and Coleman. Each tried to outdo the other in the 
11u111ber of hogs killed. Both sent agents out amongOraisers to contract 
for the killing of their droves. These contracts where frequently made 
while the hogs were being driven to town, the agents meeting the drovers 
en route. 

The work of killing and dressh:g was do!le at so 1nuch per head and 
the offal. The dressed meat was taken by the owners to various packing 
houses and disposed of by the pound. Others later can1c into this con1-
petition, an1ong whotn was Baz Blackburn, whose slaughter house occu­
pied the pn.:sent site of the Germania Brewery. 

George and Peter Bogen erecte~ and operated as a pork house the 
building now occupied by Sayers & Scovill, on Colerain Avenue, 
the building and pens occuping all the ground between the Brighton 
House, Colerain and Harrison Avenues and Bogen Street. This 
was at that titne considered the most complete slaughtering and 
packing plant in the United States. The Banner Packing con1pany of 
Evans, Lippencott & Cunningham and the J a111es Morrison Packing Com­
pany put up immense establishments about this time, the latter still being in 
operation, Besides these there were possibly one hundred smaller concerns 
located within the so-called Brighton district, among the owners of which 
where J. A,. and William Gall, James See, Thon1as Donohue, Daniel and 
Vanaken Wunder, Nicholas Wolf, John Butcher, John Graybehl, and 
others who came later and of whom mention is made elsewhere. 

'fhe rivalry reached a climax when Coleman succeeded in killing 
2,000 hogs in one day. This fact was heralded the country over, and it 
was considered that the industry had reached its zenith. Then it was 
that Cincinnati began to be known as the greatest hog and pork center in 
the country. Men rushed into the killing business, capital was invested 
in establishments, buyers were sent out to gather in hogs, which were 
for the first time in the history of the local market purchased by the 
pound on foot, killed, dressed and packed for sale and shipment. Thus 
began ''Porkopolis" '. 

Up to 1840 but few houses had been built on the Hamilton Road 
between Clarkson Street and Freeman A venue. The Brighton Volunteer 
Hand Fire Company, composed of public-spirited citizens, was located 
from 1850 to 1853 where now stands the building occupied by the Cincin­
nati Butchers' Supply Company .. 

On the opposite corner of Hamilton and Larabee Bridge Roads was 
the home of the Enyart family, which was one of the first houses in this 
vicinity, having been built in 1832, and is now one of the oldest in Brigh­
ton. A portion of the adjoining property was used by Jacob L. Enyart 
as a pork packing-·establishment. The double fran1e, building now No. 
2006 was built in 1840 and the brick building in 1849. After retiring 
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from the pork packing business Mr. Enyart conducted a grocery in 
the premises until he lost his eyesight in 1880, six years before his 
death. 

North of the Enyart property Major Charles Larabee owned 7¼ 
acres of land between the present Ravine street and Sa1nuel J. Browne's 
home, extending from the canal to the top of the hil1'. Mr. Browne after­
ward added this land to his possessions. A foot bridge crossed the canal 
at this point, hence the name Larabee Bridge Road, which has remained 
unchanged to this day.. It has the distinction of being the shortest street 
in Cincinnati, being only 146 feet long or about three and one-half times 
as long as it is wide, the survey width being 40 feet. There are but two 
owners of property abutting on this street, R. F. Enyart on one side and the 
William C. Kennett est.ate on the other. A short distance west of the 
Enyart property on Hamilton Road was the blacksmith shop of Daniel 
Jung, later a member of the brewery firm of Weyand & Jung, the 
founders of the present Jung brewing company. 

What may properly be called Cincinnati's :first water-works was 
located in this vicinity. While not a part of the municipal government 
it was a sort of quasi-public institution. This water supply plant \Vas 
simply a well in front of Paul Untereiner's tavern. Fron1 it water 
was supplied to the entire neighborhood. A rental or royalty for 
the use of the water supply of ten cents per n1onth was charged 
by the owner. The adequacy of the service afforded was commensurate 
with the charge made for it as the patrons had to come to the well with 
buckets, jugs, etc., draw the water fr, •n1 the well and carry it to their 
homes and places of business. Later the plant was improved by the 
addition of a pump. Another source of water supply in the early days 
was the canal, the water being conducted in lead pipes. This water, 
however, was used chiefly for watering the horses of the travelers, etc. 

At this time there where but twQ houses west of the Brighton·House. 
One was a tavern known as the Barnard House, built about 1827. The 
building still stands on Harrison Avenue, near the railroad tracks, and is 
occupied by John Post, a pioneer, whose place is accredited with being the 
oldest saloon in Cincinnati, he having been in business in the san1e build­
ing 44 years. Mr. I_>ost is today a well known character as he has failed 
to keep pace with the progress of the times in the conduct of his business 
and the methods he employs are relics of the primitive days and altogether 
interesting to the present day generation who chance to visit his place. 
The other building was the Truesdale property, owned by Thomas, 
Robert and Joseph Truesdale It is still standing on Bogen Street. 

Daniel Gano, who for many years was pron1inent in the puhlic eye, and 
owned the tract of land on the south side of Hamilton Road, raised a grove 
of mulberry trees for the purpose of propagating silk worms. This industry 
proved a failure and the grove afterward becan1e known as '· Buffalo Patch'> 
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the name being derived from the fact that Mr. Gano installed there a small 
herd of buffalo. 

1'hough ridiculed for his eccentricities, he was esteemed and honored 
by all who knew him, being frequently placed in positions of trust and 
responsibility. He served thirty consecutive years as clerk of the county 
and Superior Court. It was Daniel Gano who owned the four handsome 
white horses which drew the carriage in which General Lafayette rode 
in the big parade following the public reception tendered hin1 by the 
citizens upon the occasion of his visit to Cincinnati in 1825. 

Mr. Gano lived for more than 20 years in a large frame house which 
stood about in the center of his possessions. In 1844 he transfered to the 
Sisters of the Good Shepherd all the property now occupied by the 
convent and church on Bank Street. He was known by every man, 
woman aad child in the city on account of his peculiarities of dress. Up 
to the time of his death in 1873 he wore a wig with a long cue such as 
adorned the heads of the patriots of the revolutionary times. Stephen 
Gano, Sr., the well known attorney of the city, now in his 83rd year, 
a son of Daniel Gano, was about 12 years of age when his parents first 
occupied this old homestead. 

The traditions of the Millerites have to do with the history of 
Brighton back in the early forties, as they selected Brighton Hill as the 
point from which to make their ascent to Heaven. This strange religious 
sect claimed to believe that on a certain day in June, 1843, they were all 
to leave the earth and worldly things behind and ascend to Heaven. 
Elaborate preparations were made for the ascension day, many of the 
faithful and devout believers giving away their property. ~ 

A platform was erected on the highest sun1mit of Brighton Hill, 
upon which a vast concourse assembled at daylight on the morning of 
the eventful day, dressed in their ascension robes. The entire day was 
~pent in calm and patient waiting for developments, but when the 
shades of night gathered there had been none. The would-be ascen­
sionists continued to inhabit the earth along with their fellow beings. 
Sadly disappointed they returned to their homes and soon took up the 
daily tasks of life, which has previously been forsaken and repudiated by 
many of the followers. Little was heard of the Millerites after this. 

The slopeof Brighton Hill to the canal bank, thusn1arked fora chapter 
in history, and in many places to the edge of the old Han1ilton Road, 
was covered with a dense forest of beech, walnut, hickory, ash and other 
trees. The forest continued on the south side of the road to the Sand 
Hill Bluff at Dayton Street, and abounded in wild turkey, pigeon and 
other small game. South and west of Bank Street as far as Findlay 
Street the bottom land not covered by Millcreek was utiliied for the cul­
tivation of vegetables and corn. 

The Millcreek bottoms extended to Dayton Street and during the 
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early days there stood on the site of the present Fourth Intermediate 
School a little frame school house. Here it was the youths of Brighton 
of that tin1e were givtn the rudiments of their education and many of the 
early Brightonians who are living to-day well remember the picturesque 
view from the windows of \hat school house to the Ohio River unob­
structed save by two or three small farm houses. 

About the middle of the century Brighton boasted of four of the 
largest distilleries in the country and came to be known far and near 
because of the amount of whisky and proof spirits distilled. The Gaff 
distillery occupied the building where is now conducted the business of 
the James Morrison Packing Company, the White Mills distillery, owned 
and operated by Coon & Co., was located on Western Avenue in a 
building now used as a carriage factory, the Clearwater distillery was 
near the intersection of Bank Street and Freeman Avenue and the Queen 
City Distillery was situated in the high lands north of Queen City 
Avenue and owned by A. H. Smith. The latter was at that time the 
largest in the UniteJ. States. 

Most of the corn used by these distilleries was shipped by boat on 
the canal. Merchandise of all kinds was shipped out by boat and upon 
the return trip they would carry cargos of hogs, cattle, com, wheat, 
cord·wood, etc. This made the Brighton landing one of the mqst impor­
tant and active along the entire line of the canal. As a result of this 
there accumulated in the neighborhood a goodly number of rather unde­
sirable characters among the roustabouts, laborers, drivers and drovers 
and for a time Brighton was stigmatized with the reputation of being a 
tough locality. John Schatzman and Robert Reynold_s, the only 
two policemen in the territory comprising Brighton for ten Jears, 
however, coped with this element and were successful in keeping it well 
in restraint. The police of this day were elected by the people and 
Schatzman and Reynolds were chosen consecutively every year, from 
1845 to 1855. 

It was about this time that the Brighton Stock Yards were 
established by a company, at the head of which was J. M Coleman. 
Extensive pens V\"ere erected and continually added to in order to n1eet 
the demands of the rapidly increasing business in the traffic of cattle and 
hog:; until the yards occupied the entire space bounded by Hamilton 
Road and Harrison Pike on the north, Bank Street on the south, Kindel 
Avenue on the east and Riddle Street on the west. The ·fame of 
''Porkopolis" contained to spread, and farmers, raisers, drovers, herders 
and deale~s from all parts of the country, learning that better prices 
obtained in the Cincinnati market than elsewhert., came here in such 
numbers as to give an unprecedented impetus to trade and business of 
every character. The whole city took on a boom and everywhere 
substantial buildings where erected. 
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The influx of stock men created an urgent demand for hotel and 
lodging accommodations not provided and the establishment of the 
famous and historic old Brighton House was the result. The Zenith Inn, 
which was conveniently located, was purchased by the Stock Yards 
Company and rebuilt, making way for the historic Brighton House. It 
at once became popular and for years was one of the busiest and n1ost 
active places in Cincinnati. 

The Brighton House was for a n~mber of years conducted by 
Anthony Hummell and later was U!lder the management of Lew 
Bowman, who gained an enviable reputation as a host and entertainer• 
In the course of time ·gaming became general in the house. Poker 
and other games were in full blast nightly in all parts of the house 
and the attractions of so general and varied a character drew men of 
all classes until finally the neighborhood was invested with object~on­
able characters. 

These conditions continued and grew steadly worse until about 
the latter part of 1859, when citizens 1n the neighborhood became 
aroused to action and decided to take matters in their own hands. At 
this time there was formed a vigilence committee and it started a war 
on recklessness and the perpetrators ".,ith a vigor, earnestness and 
determination that at once promised its success. '!'here was to be no 
sparing, and heroic measures were at the outset employed. 

Through the bravery, heroism and determination of these men 
the offenders were finally put to rout_ and lawlessness was reduced to 
a m1n1mum. Peace and order was restored and Brighton started on a 
new era of improved morals and bettered conditions, freed of the 
objectionable characters who had so long infested and terrorized the 
neighborhood. 

It was in 1857 that the City Passenger Railroad Company came 
into existence and opened the way for improved facilities of trans­
portation to the city. The incorporation was formed for the purpose 
of laying tracks and operating horse cars through the streets of 
Cincinnati. The first advance made by the company was to secure a 
grant for the laying of tracks upon which to run cars from the Brigh­
ton House to the corner of Fourth and Main Streets. This was just 
at the time when the first substantial and permanent paving had been 
put down on :F'reeman Avenue and Western Row. These streets had 
been torn up for so long that the proposition to lay these tracks caused 
public consternation and for a long time there was a general agitation. 
The people were undecided as to their choice between good streets 
and street car accommodations. 

Protests, however, were of no avail and in the latter part of 1859 
the "Red'' or old John Street Line was put in operation. The cars 
were run at regular intervals from Brighton to the city. The opening 
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of this line marked a memorable epoch in the histury of Bri~hton. 
The start of the first car was witnessed by the entire popul~ce and it 
was greeted with excitement and enthusiasm along the entire route. 
Public interest and curiosity continued for several weeks. 

In 1860 the same "company completed and began operating the old 
'' Blue" or Seventh, Ninth, Freeman and Linn Street Line, which for 
fifteen years had its northern terminus at the corner of Freeman and 
York Streets, subsequently at the head of Freeman Avenue. After 
that and until electricity became the motive power for the operation of 
cats the "Blue" Line was operated to the Brighton House. · In 1862 
the C1ty Passenger Railroad Company opened another line running 
from the Brighton House to Spring Grove Cemetery. Until 1876 the 
company's stables and car sheds were located on Freeman Avenue and 
Bank Street, when they were removed to the present site of the Brigh­
ton Electric Power Plant on llarrison Avenue and Patterson Street, 
o~~u pying the exact location- of the old stock yards. 

The inaugur.a tion of the horse car system forced James Dougherty, 
who for many years had operated an omnibus line between Brighton 
and the i: ost Office; out of the business, the more convenient and 
comfortable method of travel being utilized by the public. 

One of the interest­
ing historic landmarks 
of Brighton is the build­
ing at the southwest 
corner of Central Ave­
nue and B a y m i 11 er 

·Street, occupied by the 
• 
Louis W. Sauer dr-ug 
store. It was erected 
by Mathias Felix in 
1846 and occupie~ by 
him as a tavern until 
1858, when it was sold 
to Michael Hoffmann, 
Sr., a porkpacker, who 
built the s 1 au g b ter 
house in the rear, con-

. tinuing in business 
there until 187 4, when he retired, the firm being Hoffmann & Vester 
from 1868, Peter Vester, ~is :brother-in-law, continuing the business 
until 1880. The building was then occupied a short time by 
butchers Theodore Ha·genbucµ_ ~nd Jacob Benninger, the latter being 
succeeded in 1881 by John }Joffniann, the present occupant. The 
west half of the Central avenue building was occupied as a cigar store 
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Established J876. L. D. PHONE, WEST 524. 

John Hoffmann, 

HIGHEST QUALITY ASSURED. 

Phone, Salesroom, M. 2469. 

Pork and Beef Packer 
Manufacturer of Sausages 

PURE F AMIL y LARD 

A SPECIALTY. 

Baymiller St.near Central Ave. 

Phone, W areroom, M. 4085 R. 

~. J. 8prengard, 
·· ·. NEW PROCESS LIQUID CARBONIC GAS 

_,,·,-·- . 

Bee·r · Pumps, Bottling Machines, Air Compressors, 
Barbers' Sprayer Outfits, Hot Water lJrns, 

Chafing Dishes, Cuspidors, Etc. 

AUTOMATIC· CONTINUOUS CARBONATORS. 

Agents for THE BISHOP & BABCOCK COMPANY, Cleveland, Ohio. 

No. 624 VINE STREET, 

CINCINNATI, O. 
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The Brighton German Bank Co. 

COR. HARRISON AND COLERAIN AVENUES. 

l\IAX MOSLER, President. ANDREW JERGENS, Vice-President. 

J. J. HitIDACHER, Cashier. 

DIRECTORS. 

C. H. M. ATKINS, 

FRA~K \V. FOLZ, 

THEO. GROENit, 

F. L. H-AFFNER, ,-

ANDREW JERGENS, 

GEORGE OSTERFELD, -

J. H. REMME~S, 

W. A. SAYERS, 

R. H. WEST, 

G. A WILLEY, 

MAX MOSLER, -

Savings Department. 

3 per cent interest paid on 
deposits of fifty cents (50c.) and 
upwards. 

Banking Department. 

Receives deposits subject to cht ck; 
lends money on bonds, stocks and 
other collaterals, and extends 
credit consistent with banking 
prudence. 

Bond Department. 

High grade Bonds bought and sold. 

Pres't Warner Elevator Mfg. Co. 

Contractor. 

of Rombach & Groene. 

of F. & C. Haffner. 

Pres't Andrew Jergens Co. 

of Bellevue Brewing Co. 

President Remmers Soap Co. 

of Sayers & Scovill. 

of Long, We~t & Co. 

of P. R. Mitchell Co. 

President. 

Safe Deposit Boxes. 

Rent~d at $2.00 and upward~. 

Foreign Department. 

Drafts aud Money Orders issued,. 
payable in all parts of the world. 
Inheritances Collected. 
U. S. Passports secured. 

Steamship Agency. 

For Leading Stean1ship Lines. 

We Solicit Your Patronage. 

·THE B~tG·HTON GE~MAN BANK CO. 
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from 1859 to 1869 by Philipp Hoffmann, brother of Michael Hoffmann, 
Sr., who is now located at 2011 Central Avenue. The east half, 
or corner room, was occupied by a druggist named Von Raschkauw. 

At the death <;>f Druggist Von Raschkauw the business passed to 
Dr. S. Alexander, a peculiar and well-known Brighton character in his 
day. His bachelor quarters were in tbe rear of the store and- he was 
a boarder at the Bri~hton House. Dr. Alexander had many ec~en­
tricities and he is now remembered wending his way to the Brighton 
House sometimes in his stocking feet to satisfy the inner 1n:an, and 
returning almost invariably munching a good-sized piece of cheese. 
By one neighbor he has been referred to as a smart and great man and 
from all 1hat has been and is said of him one is impressed with the 
belief that he must have· been the local "Alexander the Great.~, 
Wh~le engaged in business here he also conducted a sanitarium in 
Lick Run. Dr. Alexander died in 1868, having been in business 
continuously at the same place from 1859. By order· of the Court 
the business was sold to -August Hott~ndorf, who had been a clerk 
in the employ of Dr Alexander, and who was succeeded at his death 
in 1879 by Mund & Schmuck. In June, 1882, Louis W. Sauer came 
into possession of the business, which he conducted successfully until 
his death a few months ago, and which is now being managed by 
representatives of his estate. Thus the building-one of the oldest­
has been occupied as a drug store about half a century. 

An added distinction for the building is that it was for many 
years the landing pla~e of more German emigrants than any other 
either in ijrighton or Cincinnati. The cigar store of Philipp Hoffmann 
was the gathering place of many of those who hailed from the same 
vicinity jn the old country and during leisure time they were there 
in various numbers reviewing their recollections of the· Fatherland 
and discussing interesting and important questions of the new home, 
all of which created in them a feeling of kindred tie and home. 
This historic corner was also the boyhood home of the noted gymnasts . . 

Edmund and Fran_k Br~ndamour, whose mother occupied the west 
half of the present drug store from 1870 to 187 4 as a millinery store. 

As an illustration of property values during the first half and 
middle of the past century it is recounted that Michael Hoffmann 
rented from Mr. Kirby, after purchasing the frame buildings, 
consisting of a dwelling house, slaughter house and stables, which were 
on leased ground, a piece of property between Browne Street and the 
canal for $10 for the first year and $80 per year for the remaining six 
years of his occupancy. . 

Adam Metz and John Fieber · were equally prominent pork­
packers with Michael Hoffmann Sr. Competitors and in the same 
locality these three men were at the same time daily and almost 
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KEY TO ILLUSTR.-\.TIO~ ON OPPOSITE PAGE. 

1-2-Mr. and Mrs. Henry Kessler. 3-4-Mr. and Mrs. FrP.d. Lender. 5-L. C. Oberheu. 6:-Valen­
tine Heyl. 7-8-Mr and Mrs. Geo. Helmig. 9-J. H. Huelsmann. 10-Bernard Sicking. n-John 
C. Benckenstein c2-Chas. We:ss. 13-Rev. A.H. Walburg. c4-J. H. Groene. c5-\dolphus H. 
Smith. 16-Fischer. 17-Daniel Wunder. 18-Vanaken Wunder. 19-David Hummel. 20-Lang. 
21-Wagel. 22-Jas. ~ee. 23-Geo. C. Galbraith. 24-Gottfried Hegner. 25-Felician Brunner. 
26-rerdinand K<trrmann. ::27-lsaac J. Miller. 28-Clinton Bunton. 29-Ernst Freund. 30-Wm. 
Buck. 31-Metzger. 32-33 Mr. and Mrs. Chas. F. Schwenkmeyer. 34--Mrs. John Lorenz. 35-Carl 
Jung. 36-Mrs Chas. Weismaua. 37-Mrs. John Dorst. 38-Mrs. Peter Kleeman. 39-40--Mr. and 
Mrs. John J. Eilers. 
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Charles Fehr, 
SHAVING PARLOR, 

. 
No. 2188 Central Avenue. 

Buschle & Schone, 
. MERCHANT TAILORS, 

N. E. Cor. York St. and Freeman Ave. 
HUALPA BUI~DING. 

CINCINNA1'I; OHIO. 

William· Felix, 
ManufacturPr of Tin, Copper and Sheet 
Iron Ware. Dealer in Stove~, Ranges 
and House Furnishing Goods. Roofing, 
Guttering, Spouting. 

Mail Orders Attended to. 

1611 WESTERN A VENUE. 

8rigbton Boot and Sbot Stort. 
W. & H. PH.NDt>RP. 

Dealers in Men's, Ladies' Misses' and Children's 
Shoes.- Repairing neatly done . 

No. 2179 Central Avenue. 

JOHN H LOHAUS, 
Pres. and Treas. 

E. LOHAUS, 
Sec'y. 

The Banner Laundry eo. 
Office and Works, 1902-04 Coleman St. 

TELEPHONE WEST 126. 

8. H. OVERBECK, Jr., Pharmacist, 
S. E. Cor. Freeman Ave. and Dayton St. 

We recommend you to try our specialties: 
DR. BELL'S Rheumatic Liniment (sure relief 

from pain), White Pine Cough Synt"p, 
Throat Tablets, Headache Powders. Dys­
pepsia Tablets. Japanese 1'oothache drops. 

Physicians' prescriptions and family receipts 
compounded with care. 

Henry Baum, 
LOCKSMITH AND BELL HANGER, 

2581 Colerain Avenue. 

Electric Alarm Clocks to Order 83. 50. 

Aluminum Soldering and Repairing a specialty. 

L J. M • 11 Manufacturer and Sole Proprietor of J. Sedge-• . l e.r, beer's Patent NONPAREIL REVERSIBLE 
. MOTION CUSHION and GRINDING MILLS. 

FrE!ight Elt!vators for Factories and Warehouses, Improved Self-oiling 
Shafting h:1ngers, Adjustable in all Directions. Machinery and 
Castings Made to Order. 

1233 HARRISON AVENUE. 

The Oliver Schlemmer Co. 

I Sll Linn Street, 

Plumbing and Heating Contractors. 
Repair Work Promptly Attended to. 

TELEPHONE W. 580. 
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·v. Barikh~rdt, 
MANUFACTUR,ER OF 

Trunks, Valises and Leather 
Goods. 

Also Importer of Fine Toilet 
Sets, Pocket Books, Card 
Cases, Bill Books, and Letter 
Cases. Repairing done. 

537 Vine Street. Phone M. 3053 
Three doors above Grand Opera House. 

Aug. Huelsman, 
-DEALER IN-

General Household Furnishing 
Goods. 

BOSS, UNEEDA, and GOODWILL 
STOVES and RANGES. 

Repairing of Stoves . ,/\.... 
and Ranges a Specialty. ~ 

.2143 Central Ave. Cincinnati. 

J6HN SRUER, eeNTRAe~eR AND EXe1\VATeR 
Dealer in FOR SALE! 

COAL, COKE. STONE, SAND, BUILDING LOTS, CHEAP, 
· GRAVEL, ETC. in my sub-division. 

All kinds of Heavy Hauling Done. Clifton Ave., Parker St., and Sauer Ave. 

RESIDENCE., SAUER AVE. ANO PARKER ST. 

Albert Niesen Newhouse Bros. 
PLUM.BER AND 

GAS FITTER 

Sanitary Work 
a Specialty. Phone Main 3776-R. 

Residence 301 Renner St. 

2017 Moh a wk Place--=~ 

Practical HORSE 
SHOERS 

Horses Shod in the latest and 

mosf approved manner. 

S. E. Cor. Mohawk Place and­
Plum St., opp. Mohawk Bridge. 

THE LEAOINGli BARS ANO CAFES IN THE CITY. 

431 \Valnut Street. Telephone Main 239. 
GRUBER & SALMAR, Prop'rs. 

The l'alace f!ar, 431 Vine St. The Vestibule, s. a~d ~:in:th 

GRUBER & FRIXION'E, Prop'rs. GRUBER & FRIXIONE, Prop'rs. 
Tdephone Main 1725. Direct entrance to and from Hotel Emery. 

H. YANNEY, 
CHRIS. DOAR. Y anney & Doar, TELEPHONE 

WEST 508. 

1\11 kinds of _Heavy_ Hau·li~,g.·· Machine Hauling a Specialty 

1229 Harrison A venue. Cincinnati, 0. 
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Drink. Good Whisky, 

Costs No More. 

"ZBna,'' "Lenox," '' Tippecanoe," "Old Giaru.'' 

JACOB -J. PFEFFER, 
Wholesale Liquor Dealer. 1216=1lS=20· OEST ST. 

hourly cotapanions. Most of their purchases of hogs were made as if 
for one. concern, divided proportionately, each paying for that portion 
that went to hi, business-a sort of primitive and miniature trust. 
In this way the names became associated and succeeding generations 
have been unable to disassociate Hoffmann, Metz and Fieber, a 
combination that was as well and favorably known throughout the 
whole city as it was in Brighton. The Metz establishment was 
located on the site of the pres~nt H. H. Meyer Packing Company. 
Mr. Fieber, after removing from Mohawl: was in the building now 
occupied by the Hauser, Brenner & Fath Cooperage Company. 

East of the old Fieber establishn1ent, where is now Suhre's 
Anchor Tannery, were the Kirchner, Dewald and Thill tanneries. 
Near here old Squire Crary was also located for ~ number of years, a 
feature of whose administration was that he frequently held court in 
open air under a tree 1n the neighborhood. The ro"1 of buildings now 
numbered 1930, 32, 34 and 36, forming a point at Mohawk Bridge was 
erected later. Dr. 1-I. L. Amick, whose office is at the extreme 
eastern point of this building has been in the locality a number of 
years and is pr9n1inent and influentiaJ. The wagon shop and 
residence of Fred Chris. '\Vuest, was located across Mohawk Bridge 
in the buildi, g now occupied by Jacob Mandery's milk depot It is 
perpetuated to memory in a painting of Mohawk Bridge and its sur­
roundings by Farney. His sons F. & C. Wuest, after his death, 
continued the business for a number of years in the old Bull Head 
Tavern building, which still stands as one of the oldest land marks 
of Mohawk. 

Mohawk Bridge brings us to a dividing line between Brighton 
and Mohawk. What may be considered a practical estimate of the 

-41-



NEW MANAGEMENT. WILLIAM T. IRWIN. FRANK H. BALLMANN. 

NEW EQUIPMENT. 
LATEST METHODS. .;1,.;1,.;1, 

Cbt £incinnati ProctSs Irwin, Ballmann & to. 
Engraving £0mpany. 

Makers of 

PERFECT PRINTING 

PLATES. 

TELEPHONE, MAIN 2722. 

614 Race St., Cincinnati, 0. 

Jennings & Pye 

Importers and Publishers 

of German and English 

Books and Periodicals. 

INVES .. fMENT 

SECURITIES. 

No. 37 East Third Street, 

Cincinnati, 0. 

STEEL RANGES, 
Family and Hotel Sizt s. 

STE)VE REPAIRS 
For 41,500 Different Stoves, 
Ranges auci Heaters. 

Sheet Metal Job Work 
In all Gaugts 

T~e William G. Fisc~er 
MANUFACTURING CO. 

220-222 W. FOURTH STREET, Nos. t09-JJ9 CHURCH PLACEt 

QNCINNATI, 0. CINCINNATI, 0. 



boundary of Brighton is the Brighton Hills, now Fairview 
Heights, and Camp Washington on the north, Mohawk Bridge and 
the Miami Canal to York Street on the east, Millcreek on the west 
and York Stree · on the South. The extensive soap and candle 
factories of Proctor & Gamble were for a number of years located 
within the Brighton district. 

This plant covered all the ground between Central Avenue and 
the canal from a point about opposite Dayton Streec .to Charlotte 
Street, besides considerable property on the opposite side of Central 
Avenue and into York Street. The company began here in an humble 
way, sending out a horse a~d cart to gather wood-ashes and scraps of 
grease and bones, payment for which was made with one or several 
pieces of brown soap. During and previous to the forties much of 
this neighborhood consisted of vegetable gardens and orchards. One 
on Central Avenue between Dayton and Bank Streets belonged to John 
Watson and another where the York Street M. E.Church now stands was 
owned by William Watson. John Eckles, George Watson, Thomas 
Coope and others ownec'i similar places in the vicinity. · The cemetery 
of the German Protestant St. Peters congregation, whose church is 
now at Main Street and McMicken Avenue, was located west of 
Central Avenue between York and Dayton Streets, the ground now 
being covered by part of the plant of. the John Hauck Brewing 
Company. 

The firm of Hauc~ & Windisch was established by John Hauck 
and John Ulrich Windisch in 1863, and after the death of the latter 
the business was continued by John Hauck and later by the John 
Hauck Brewing Company. Henry Wentzel early in the fifties had 
a blacksmith shop at the corner of Central Avenue and Bank 
Street. Here also John Griesbaum had a wagon shop, being 
the one now operated by Bernhard Binder. James R. Palmer's and 
Frank Weil's omnibus and wagon shops were for many years on Bank 
Street near the Thirteens Engine House. The coffee house and hall 
of Valentine Kaheins, an ancient land mark, occupied the present 
site of the Reimann building during the fifties, and many of the 
pioneers recall the days of youth when they danced in this hall. 
In the middle of the sidewalk in front of this house was a box-covered 
pump from which water was drawn with the time-honored "old oaken 
bucket." Pursuant to a city ordinance this well was afterwards filled. 
Reimann & Co., the photographers, who i~ 1874 located at No. 1936 
Central Alenue, erected and moved to the present building in 1892. 

The Eger drug store, at Mohawk Bridge, was one of the earliest 
established in this locality, being .owned successively by Druggists 
Kuehn, Nolte, Zahn and Otto C. F. Lippert, the latter being in 
business there from 1861 to 1864, when he sold to August Stumpe, who 
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Phone Main 3977. Agent for Lake Erie and California Wines. 

6EE)R6E W. EVESL116E, 
Wholesale Dealer in WINES. 

Warehouses, 60£5-607 Fountain Street. 

PHONE MAIN 779. 

TRAUB'S BUSINESS 
COLLEGE. 

WE TEACH: Actual business from the 
start. The best Shorthand system 
the world has ever known. Our 
sturlents take dictation in a fow days. 

TBLEGRH..,,.HY • . 

13-15 E. FIFT-H ST. CINCINNATI. 
Fountain Square. 

A. SCHMIDT, 

20 and 22 East Sixth Street 

Ernst Freund 
PORK and 

BEEF PACKER. 

1213-15-17 West Liberty Street. 

Phone· West 848. 

Dealer in STOVES, TIN\\' ARE, 

HOUSE FUUNISHING GOODS. 

Oasolineand Oil Stoves, Wash Wringers and Stepladders. 
Roofing and Spouting a Specialty·========= 

All kinds of ~tove Linings 2014-2016 Central Ave., near Baymiller. 
a Specialty. 

C. W. Loughead & Go. 
French Dyers and Drv Cleaners 
of Ladies' and Gentlemen's Garments. 

We do nothing but First-Class Work 
and our prices are Yery reasonable. 

We call for and deliver 
good8 free of charge. 

104-106 W. Court St. 
717 Race Street. 
965 E. McMillan St 

Phone Main 2884 

Phone Main 3761-R. 

Phone Yorth 924. 

Established 1875. Phone 3099 Main 

JOHN EGER 
AWNING, TENT and FLAG MANF'R 

Mt. Vernon Extra Cotton Duck. 

Agent for Towers' Fish Brand Oiled 
Clothing and Slickers. 

Paulins, Horse and Wagon Covers 
on Hand and Made to Order. 

S. E. Cor. Eighth and Main Sts. 

Brighton Hotel, 
CHAS. ABAECHERLI, 

CENTRAL AVE., Opp. Fretman, CINCINNATI, OHIO. 
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1-John Deck. 2-3-Mr. and Mrs Paul Schuppn. 4-5-Mr. and Mts. Fred. Golline:er 6-Georg~ 
Klotter. 7-H. F. Teetor. 8-q-Mr. and Mr. Karl Huss. 10-u-Mr. and Mrs. Fred. Hdmi:;derfer. 
12-13-Mr. and Mrs, John Heck. 14-Bernhard Willinger. 15-Charles Pandorf. 16-17-Mr. and 
Mrs. Peter Schaurer. 18-Johu Blackburn. 



F. Wm~ Wuest, 
Choice Groceries, 

Fruits and Vegetables. 

No. 1177 Harrison Avenue,··: 

Cincinnati, 0. 

Wedding Presents Phone Main, 2698. 
a Specialty 

zumbiel & Beck, 
MOULDINGS and PICTURE FRAMES 

. ··~ 

1810 Vine Street. 

Factory: Cor. Eighth and Eggleston Avenue. 

Mrs. W. H. Ounn, 
MILLINER. 

Hats and Bonnets Made to Order. 
Best Materials. 
Reasonable Prices. 
An up-to-date Stock always on hand. 

1422 Race Street, 

Cincinnati, 0. 

Established on Fifth Street, Since 1890. 

E. ZEl'F, 
Successor.to:·zEPF BROTHERS, 

Manufacturer of 

UMBRELLAS, PARASOLS and CANES 
Repairing and Covering. Sahlin Corsets, 

Chatelaine Bags, Etc. 

212 West Fifth St., .Cincinnati, 0. 
Near Elm. 

Otto H. G. Lippert, Nie. Mauderer, 
Me HAWK elGJIR PaeTt)RY. 

PHARMACIST. 

Manufacturer of KUM\'S 

Opp. Mohawk Bridge. 

Manufacturer and Wholesale 
and Retail Dealer in 

(Effervescent Milk, originated in Hussia) CIGARS AND TOBACCO. 
Excellent for Weak Stomachs. 

Cor. Freeman Ave. and Liberty St. 

Cincinnati. 

Choice Brands of Cigars and Tobacco. 
Smokers' Articles a Specialty. 
Orders Promptly Executed. 

1931 CENTRAL AVENUE. 

PHIL. METZ, JR .. 
Electric Road Exchange. 

BEST BRANDS WINES, LIQUORS AND CIGARS. 

2185 Central Avenue, 

ehas .. Arbogast, 
Manufacturer of and Dealer in Harnesi:;, Saddlef, 

Collars. Bridles, Whips. Halters, Combs, 
Brushes, Horse Clothing, etc. 

1300 Harrison Ave. 

Cincinnati, Ohio. 

W. T. Smith Printing eo. 
TELEPHONE WEST 620. 

No. 2139 Freeman Avenue. 

-46-



in turn was succeeded by George Eger, who died in 1900, the busi~ess 
being continued by his family. Otto C. F. Lippert, after being 
associated for several years with G. W. Maas in the furniture business, 
was the owner of the Brighton drug store from 1869 to 1879, J. H. 
Koenig, being the present owner. 

Dr. James Richardson who was a prominent physician in Brighton 
about the middle of the past century, was a large real estate holder in 
the district. He owned the Mohawk drug store and a number of the 
buildings to the east and west of it, including the Brighton Odd 
Fel1ows' Hall, one of the pre.sent old landmarks, being the builqing 
now known as 1941 Central Avenue. In this old hall tlie butchers' 
and other associations and the Brighton Volunteer Fire Company held 
their meetings and Mohawk Lodge I. 0. 0. F. was founded in this 
building in 1850. At the entrance can still be seen, partly obliterate:-: 
by the ravages of time, the sign of Dr. Richardson. 

"Schwabenland" was a historic gathering place. Andreas 
Dieterle was its founder and owner from 1858 until 1891, when he died, 
being. succeeded by Charles Hess, who continued it several years. 
Mr. Dieterle was a man of quiet disposition and strict business 
principles and his place was at all times conspi~uously orderly. 'I'he 
excellent house keeping qualities of Mrs. Dieterle added to the 
charm and the fame of the place and tbeir combined careful manage­
ment brought them only the very best class of patronage. The 
interior walls ~ere handsomely decorated in oil v.Tith landscape scenery, 
after the style of the Ge'rman dWirths-stube." Among the "Stamm­
gaeste'' were Michael Eckert, Postmaster and County Treasurer 
F .. J. Mayer; Judge Lindemann, Michael Hoffmann, sr., Adam Metz, 
John Fieber, Andreas Brehm and many other notables. 

Michael Eckert one of the successful pioneer business men of 
Brighton, was a practical tanner, who with Gerhard Dickmann, in 1841 
founded what afterward grew to be the extensive Western Tannery 
on Central Avenue near Clarkson Street. Mr. Dickmann withdrew 
from the firm in 1858, Mr. Eckert continuing the tannery, which he 
enlarged from time to titne until it occupied the spacious buildings 
now constituting the iron foundry plant of J. B. Blettner & Co., and 
the grounds and buildings now occupied by the Meyer Bros. Furniture 
Company on Wilmink Street. The tannery business was discontinued 
upon the death of Mr. Eckert in 1877, but the firm of Griess, Pfleger & 
Co., composed of former employes of Mr. Eckert, became his successor 
in the sales department on Main Street opposite the Custom House, 
where they continued until their removal to their present location on 
Sycamore Street. 

The southeast corner of Central Avenue and Linn Street is 
remembered by pioneers as a woolen weaving establishment, owned 
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The ·Huss Bros. Mamtfacturing Co., 
12 Meda.ls A.warded. 

BA.11, BANK· and -OF~ICE FIXTURES 
and BILLIARD TA.BL~S. 

111· Par.euta. 
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by G. Arand, the building in later years being occupied by Conrad 
Silbernagel and August Draude. The building adjoining on the east 
was the Adam Metz residence and after his removal to the corner of 
Bank and Linn Streets, was f or·a number of years occupied by the shoe­
maker George P. Schaurer and is now occupied by K. Schuh's dry 
goods store. At the southwest corner of Central Avenue and Linn 
Street was an old-fashioned two-story brick building owned by Adam 
Metz,·which at various times was occupied by Abraham Deck, Fred 
Korzenborn, William Huttenmueller and Frank Duttenhoefer. The 
Gall family was one of the early occupants of the next house, which 
was afterwards the home of Frank Metz_, adjoining which was the 
barbershop and saloon of Philipp Bickenhaeuser, who was one of the 
first in this part of the city to establish a bowling alley. 

In this immediate neighborhood, about half a century ago, Jacob 
Vogel, senior member of the present pork packing firm, began business 
in a primitive way, like some of his cont~mporaries, taking the me~t 
of the hogs he killed to market in a wheel barrow. Anthony Pancera 
was _one of the successful butchers along here and his next door 
neighbor on the west was Peter Kleeman the cabinet maker, father 
of William and Nicholas Kleeman. John Oelgoetz and Leonhard 
Freund occupied the adjoining buildings. 

Peter Felix, a tailor, of one of the early Brighton families, erected 
the building now occupied by his sons, Michael and. Charles Felix, 
at the northwest corner of Central Avenue and Baymiller Street, in 
the early seventies, and located there. Michael Felix, a brother of 
the tailor, Peter King, Jacob Haehl and Carl Jung were the 
renowned wagon makers in this neighborhood between the forties and 
seventies, the former's shop being on Western Row opposite Larab~e 
Bridge Road, where Casper Gehred afterward -conducted a butcher 
business, while in the adjoining building, now 2007, he had a saloon, 
which in one of the early directories is referred to as "The Country 
Hall." Peter King's shop was on the north side of Wes tern Row, 
west of Baymiller. A special feature of his business was the manu­
facture and repair of gypsy wagons. 

Fathers and mothers of today can vividly recall to memory when, 
as children, they watched with mingled admiration and fear, these 
traveling houses an~ their occupants in front of the old wagon shop, 
which still stands and is now occupied by the wagon maker George 
Wollen~chlager. Another ~cene readily recalled is that of King, at 
work in the then vacant lot at the northwest corner of Central Avenue 
and Baymiller Street, where, over a huge fire, the tires where heated 
and applied to the wheels. The interesting p~rt of the recollection to 
those who were then boys is one that could be justly described only 
by a James Whitcomb Riley. After the departure of the wagon 
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maker and his assistants, "us boys'' would take the field, each 
provided with a potato-just a plain every-day potato-which would be 
sacrificed over the slumbering embers and ashes, and then followed a 
fe~st the memory of which rejuvenates the palate. 

The tannery of J. F. Forbus & Co. was at the northeast corner 
of Central Avenue and Larabee Bridge Road, to the business of .which 
Willi'='-m C. Kennett succeeded, erecting the buildings now occupied 
by the Cincinnati Butchers' Supply Company. Dr. S. Greenwald's 
office was in the Enyart house on the opposite corner, which in later 
years was occupied by William Poseiner's meat store, being also the 
home of Jonas Fishburn, Maurice Foucar, who was conne~ted with 
the Forbus tannery, and George Caldwell, cashier· at the Brighton 
street car office. Charles Gutermuth, the barber, occupied the next 
Enyart building. The furniture stores of G. W. Maas occupied the 
sevt:ral buildings to the west, Otto Lippert, Emil Wagner and Martin 
Oosterkamp being associated with him at various times, the latter 
succeeding to the stand upon Mr. Maas removal to Cumminsville. In 
later years, and up to the time of his death, Emil Wagner was in 
business in the old Odd ~~ellows' Hall. John Rehm was one of the 
early cabinet makers here. George Baum, a pine and cedar cooper, 
located in this section late in the forties. This was an important 
business at that time, the cedar ware being much used by butchers 
and as family utensils. Jacob Pfau, Fred Loesch and John Kobmann 
were the represenath.re m~n in the tinner'~ trade, the former's shop 
adjoining George Baum's place. Fred Loesh, who is still in business, 
located on Central Avenue in 1855. For a number of years John 
Kobmann was in the Taylor building, from where he removed to 
Mohawk Bridge, the business now being conducted by his son, 
Charles Kobmann. 

On the south side of Central Avenue east of Baymiller, where 
John Kahley erected the several buildings now occupying. the site, 
""as located a butcher, Charles Huck, and here was another tread­
mill propelled by a dog to furnish power for a meat chopping machine. 
Fred Engelke and ·Fred Gollinger established bakeries on Central 
Avenue during the sixtie.s, the former near Mohawk Bridge, which is 
still conducted by descendants of the family, and the latter at the 
corner of Ba ymiller Street. Wil1 iam A. Allen was one of· the pioneer 
merchants in the Yurnishing and general outfitting business at the 
northeast corner of Central Avenue and Baymiller Street. 

The cottage at the corner of Baymiller Street and the canal is one 
of the old landmarks, having stood here about three score years. It 
was alternately the home of Dr. Barnwell, Benjamin Campbell, 

• George Kuhn· and Henry Hardt. The head of this street was one of 
the landing places for the canal boats. During t~e summers pic-nic 
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parties on their primitive crafts bound for Ludlow Grove could be 
seen daily. A vast amount of freight was unloaded here, especially 
cord wood, which was pretty generally used as fuel by the butchers, 
bakers and private families. Ice was harvested here in gre_at 
abundance during the winters. At this point the residence of Samuel 
J. Browne, west of Baymiller, and that of his son, Pierson, further 
east, were the only houses on the hillside during and previous to the 
sixties, being surrounded by orchards and pastures. 

The wholesale grocery firm of Joseph Taylor & Co. is one of the 
oldest business concerns in Brighton, having been established at the 
present location by John Taylor in 1844. In 1851 his brother, Joseph, 
became associated with him, the firm then being John Taylor& Co. The 
elder member of the :firm- retired and removed to Kansas in 1876, 
Joseph continuing the business alone until recent years when his sons, 
Walter and Arthur, associated themselves and assumed part manage­
ment with their father. 

In 1844 and 1845 Hiram Clearwater erected the buildings now occu­
pied by the hardware store and wholesale grocery, and in 1851 he sold 
the property to John Taylor, who built the block adjoining on the 
east in 1855. Froelking & Marmet, hardware merchants, predecessors 
to the present occupant, were in business in the first named of these 
buildings from 1856 to 1868. August Froelking and Otto Marmet, of 
this firm were also partners in the firm of Marmet & Co., one of 
whose coal yards at that time was opposite their store. Adjoining 
the coal yard on the ea~t was C. Beckmann, a merchant tailor, the 
building later being occµpied as. a candy factory by George G. S1nith, 
the popular Major of th~ famous First Regiment Band. 

It was in Brighton that the band from which the First Regin1ent 
came into existence was organized. Major Smith was a member of the 
old Jackson Con1binatio11 Club in Brighton, in conjunction with which he 
organized a small brass band. ''Smitty'' and his musi~ at once became 
popular and in a few years his band was consolidated with the Y. M. C. A. 
band, of which Mr. Al. Macbrair was the leader. Some of the most 
enthusiastic and hard working men1bers of the present First Regin1ent 
Band are Major Smith anq a few of his associates in the Jackson Combi­
nation Club. Major Smith's son, George, is the musical director of the First 
Regiment Band. 

The tavern of Joh~ Deprez adjoined the Marmet y-ard on the west, 
and the ice houses of Robert R. Reynolds, afterward the Stone Lake Ice 
Company, were in this immediate vicinity. John Deremo, the veteran 
shoemaker, located on Western Row next to the Taylor grocery in 1852. 
Much of his business was with the stock raisers who came to the Brighton 
House, and as factory-made boots and shoes where practically unknown 
it was his daily routine to visit the guests at this hostelry and take their 
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orders for custom made boots. He died in 1861, his V\"idow continuing· 
the business until her· death in 1888, since which time it has been 
conducted by their son, John Dererilo, of the John Shillito Company. 
Martin Sauer, in the Taylor Blo"ck; E. Westerkamm, Central Avenue 
near Freeman; John Hummel, Freeman Avenue and Bank Street; John 
Kafer and H. H. Berling, ce·ntral Avenu~ near the Mohawk Bridge ; 
Nicholas Hof and Henry Decker, on Harrison Avenue, were also among 
the early shoemakers. 

J o~eph Ritzer, the pioneer saddle and harness maker, established his 
business on Central Avenue near Freeman in 1855, near where he is still 
in business. Paul Schopper.· in the same line, located near Mohawk 
Bridge, where he was succee~ed by Fred W. Herrmann, and later, his 
nephew, Gottlieb Schopper, continued the business near the Brighton 
House after the retirement of the elder Schopper. 

The Weyand & Jung Brewery was estaqlished on Western Row in 
1857 and in 1871 the plant was enlarged by the erection of new buildings 
on Freeman Avenue and Bank Street. The former is now the Germania 
Brewery and the latter the Jung Brewery. J. Geo. Oeh, now with the 
Moerlein_ Brewing Company, was bookkeeper for the Weyand & Jung 
Company for a number of years. 

In these day:; one of the leading industries in Brighton was that 
of bristle combing, the material for which was obtained - from the 
slaughtering establishments. Henry and Jacob Winkler engaged in the 
hair and bristle manufacturing business on Stark Street in 1855, the 
former removing to Central Avenue near Freeman in 1860, where he 
continued in business ·for himself until 1888. and for a number of years, 
after removing from the original location, Jacob was in business adjoin­
ing the Eckert Tannery. The :fi. rm of Kindel & Pistner, the latter, 
father of E. C. Pistner and until his death a few _years ago, a Lieutenant 
of Police, was engagE-d for many_ years in the same industry on 
Clearwater Street near Baymiller. Anthony Schaefers, William Russell 
and Henry Cordes were the horse shoers, the established ~usiness of 
the former still being conducted by his son, Bernard Schaefers. 

Robert Reynolds, Sr., Joseph, John and George Reynolds, were 
poultry dealers, and William, another brother, was a grocer. All of 
these were cousins of R.R •. Reynolds, Sr., the pioneer ice merchant, 
and father of Robert R. Reynolds, President of the Ice Delivery 
Company. Charles F. Muth, the honey king, purchased the grocery on 
Western Row opposite Freeman in 1862, occupying the building erected 
by Thomas Taylor in 1838. To the business Mr. Muth added the 
specialty of honey and bee keepers' supplies, in which· he became an 
acknowledged authority. Another well-known pioneer family was that 
of Henry Kresz, owner of the Brighton Hotel. For a number of years 
he occupied a row of frame buildings on Western Row opposite Freeman, 
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where he conducted a boarding house and saloon. Many of the dairy­
men, gardeners and butchers took their breakfasts here daily while on 
their early morning trips to serve their customers. With the growth of 
the business Mr. Kresz erected the present buildings. After his death 
his widow and son continued the business until the death of the· latter, 
when Charles Abaecherli succeeded to it. George Tau bald, a hn,ther-in­
law of Henry Kresz, was a prominent grain and feed merchant, occupy­
ing the property adjoining the Kresz place. 

William Bromley, an Englishman, in 1843 started a pottery in the 
building erected by Thomas Rutherford for a bristle factory at the 
south-west corner of Freeman and Central Avenues. Duncan & Bunten, 
carpenters and builders, erected many houses in Brighton and not a few 
big down-town structures, among them the Hulbert Block, at Sixth and 
Vine Streets. They built and owned a substantial block on the west side 
of Freeman Avenue south of Central. Their shop at Freeman and 
Clearwater, was later the wagon factory of Philip Schoneberger, who 
was iri the business there many years. At the corner of Hamilton Road 
and Denman Street, now Central and Kindel Avenues, was the brewery 

· of Peter Herancourt, a brother of George M. Herancourt. It was 
known as the "Box Brewery," the building being constructed entirely of 
frame. 

Jacob Thiel's feed mill was in this immediate locality. One of the 
pioneer merchants here is Joseph H. Wolf, who,.· since 1862, has 
conducted the grocery on Central Avenue west of Freeman, and the feed 
and grain business at Central and Kindel A venues. Retiring from the 
former business several years ago, his son-in-law, the late J. B. 
Lagemann, became his successor, and since his death the business has 
been continued by his widow, who also has a dry go, ds business in the 
Lagemann Block, adjoining the Brighton German Bank. Mr. Wolf still 
carries on the feed and grain busine~s, in which his son, Joseph B. Wolf, 
is associated with him. 

C. H. W. Weber is another of the old-time merchants .here, who 
early in his business career was a clerk· for C. F. Muth. He removed 
recently from the corner of Central and Kindel A venues to his present 
location. Ernst Freund, one of the early butchers, was for many years 
on Central Avenue opposite Denman Street, and the shoe store of 
I. Schiff, father of Leon Schiff, the novelty merchant on Central avenue, 
was near here. Jacob and Louis Zachritz and Charles Fehr were 
pioneer barbers near the Brighton House and Charles Fehr, Jr., who 
succeeded to his father's business, may in turn be classed as a pioneer. 
Sergeant Detective Cal Crim was a Brightonian, having worked in the 
Fehr establishment several years, and later owned a shop on Western 
Avenue. 

Karl F. Huss, a cabinet maker, father of Charles, William, G. 
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The David Hummel Building Co. 
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The O'Dell Commission Co., 
11 EAST THIRD STREET. 

Sl OCKS, GRAJN, COTTON and PROVISIONS. 
Order, E¥,cuted for Cash or on Margins to suit. 
We hav~ Cincinnati Street Railway, Gas and 
Eleqtric, ._nd all high-grade local Investment 
StQc~i;; ind Bonds. 
Call ~p.ps Negotiated. 
M~il A,tjd Telegraph Orders solicited and care­
fully ~;J:ecuted. 
Ch'11<e, E. Bultman our representative on the 
Floor 9f the Chamber of Commerce. 

John W. Ball'mann, Mgr., City Office. 

LONO DISTANCE TELEPHONE MAIN 2881. 

F .. W. TRINKLE, 

J 
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2137 CENTRAL A VENUE, 
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Plumbing 
and Gas 
Fitting. 

SEWER TAPPING. 

HIGH GRADE RESIDENCE 

PLUMBING A SPECIALTY. 

Telephone W. 201. 



Adolph and Fred Huss, engaged in the grocery business opposite the 
Brighton House early in the fifties, which he continued until 1875. Mr. 
Huss erected the building now occupied by the Brighton office of the 
Traction Company on the site of the old grocery. 

. . Adjoining this on the east was Buckley's blacksmith shop while 
on the west was located Jacob Baut'r, a charcoal dealer, the building 
being occupied later by Louis Zachritz. Next to this ,vas a Mrs. 
Schweitzer whose place was a veritable curiosity shop. All the . 
boys and girls of Brightotl in those days knew "Mrs. Muggel," 
as she was called and they came from far and near with their pennies 
to buy her celebrated molasses candy. 

At the western terminus of Central Avenue,. now the approach· 
to the Brighton Bridge, was the saloon and summer garden of Michael 
Ilaag, and it was here that he constructed a sort of draw bridge of 
crude rafts, over which passage was given for five cents per person 
to the woods on the opposite side, where were ideal outing and picnic 
grounds. He also built the circular building known as the ''Round 
House," still standing, opposite the bridge, converting the grounds 
into a garden_. Franz de Correvont was the veteran photographer 
where is now the studio of Louis Schaetzle. John Collet; ·a cigar 
manufacturer, was for many years on the opposite side of Central 
Avenue. Some of the members of this pioneer family, among them 
Mrs. Andrew Messmer, still Ii ve in the Brighton district. Others of 
the early cigar n1anufacturers not heretofore mentioned were John 
and William Minning, George Schucht and He~ry Lorenz. The 
Helmsderfer and Pandorf f an1ilies are among those whose homes 
have been near the site of the old Brighton House continuously for 
more· than half a century. 

Fred Helmsderfer's bakery was at the south-east corner of 
Han1ilton Road and Coleman Street and his next door neighbor was 
Charles Pandorf, dealer in dry goods and notions. David Hottman's 
"Old Hickory" saloon, or coffee house, and the original Brighton 
street railway office ,vere in this block. During the civil war a 
recruiting station was established in the "Old Hickory" building 
with Col. Gustav Tafel, former Mayor, in charge. Thomas Streiff, 
father of Detective Phil. Streiff, was in the confectionery business 
near here early in the sixties. Mrs. Schroth, mother of John and 
Fred, of the Schroth Packing Company, had a meat store in the 
frame building where now stands the Brighton German Bank, 
where ,vere also coffee houses conducted by Michael Schantz, Jacob 
Schaible and Joseph Cramer. Fritsch & Zeidler, porkpackers, were 
where John Hoffmann's Sons are now located. The present Brighton 
play grounds on Winchell Avenue was the vegetable garden of Adam 
1:Iustabout haif a century ago and waslaterconducted by Andreas Salm. 
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1-John Felix. 2-Theo Groene. 3-J. C Groene. 4-Gcorge F. Dieterle. 5-Robert R. Reynolds. 
6-Peter Renner. 7-Luke A. Staley. 8-George W. Galbraith 9-G. Adolph Huss. 10-C Fred. 
Huss. II--Gt-n. A. Hickenlooper. 12-John Weyand 13-Chatlt-s W. Huss. 14--William C. Huss. 
15-Fred. W. Muth. 16-John Dercmo. 17-Leon Schiff. 18--John Rettig. 19--August W. Bruck. 
2tr-Julius Pfleger. 21--William Traxel. 22-E. C. Pistuer. 
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· Joseph Hollaender & Co. 
DEALERS IN FINE, OLD, STRAIGHT WHISKIES 

and sole ovVners and distributors of 

''OLD ROLftND BOURBON & RYE'' 

In Barrels and Cases for Bar -~nd Family use. 

No. 40 VINE STREET, CINCINNATI, 0. 

Pormerly 11. lc'lirrmann & eo. 

Tho Railway SRDDlY and lannf actnring Co. 
CINCINNATI, OHIO. 

MANUFACTURERS OF 

Cotton and Woolen Waste. 
Dealers in Soft Stock, Linters and Cotton. 

The Joseph Jose.Ph & Bros. Co. 
1242 to 1248 HARRISON AVENUE. 
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CURES BALDNESS 
trial Pac1Ca9t Jr« to eonvinct Ptoplt lt Jlctually &rows J;air. 

MISS. EMMA EMOND. 

The portri-iits of Miss Emma Emond 
show what a striking difference is made 
in a person wht'n the bald head is covered 
with hair. Miss Emond was totally bald, 
the hafr follicles not only upon her head 
but upon her eyebrows being complett:-ly 
contracted. not the sign of a hair being 
found. Of course she \\'as the object of 
many Pxperiments all of which failed an<l 
the offer of a well known DispensHry to 
send a free trial of their remedy was 
peculiarly alluring to bPr. She sent for 
the free trial. followed all · directions 
faithfully and soon she was rewarded by 
a grnwth of hair, which for thickness, 
quality and luxuriance was as remarkable 
as the result was gratifying Miss Emond 
1ives in St Sauveur, Quebec, Canada at 
110 Signai Street, and naturally feels very 
much elated to recover front total bald­
ness. 

Those who are losing their hair or have 
parted with their ·locks can ha\·e it 
restored hy a remedy that is sent free to 
all A c;ncinnati ~ finn has concluded 
that the best way to convince people that 
hair can be grown on any head is to let 

them try it, and see for tht:mseh·es. All 
sorts of theories have been ~dvanced to 
account for falling hair hut after all, it is 
the reme,ly we are afti-r and not the 
theory. People who nee,1 more hair, or 
are anxious to s·~,·e what tltt'Y ha,·e or 
from sickness, dandruff or otlwr causes 
ha,·e lost thtir hair should at once send 
for a free trial package and learn for 
themselves that their hair can be quickly 
restored. 

The reme<ly also curE>s itl'hing and 
dandruff, snre signs of approaching 
bal<l ness, and keeps th«> scalp healthy and 
vigorous. It also restores gray hair to 
natural color and produces thick and 
lustrous eyt-brow', and eyf:'lashes. By 
~ending )·our name and adrlre~s to the 
Altenheim Menical Dispen~ary. 709 
Butterfield Building, Cincinnati, Ohio, 
enclosing a 2 cent stamp to cover postage, 
they will mail ~ ou prepaid a free trial of 
their remarkable remedy together with 
te~timonia1s from thousards who have 
used the remedy and all information 
necessary to help you in qufrkly 
regaining ):Our hair. 
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Bernhard "\Villinger, an Alsatian1 started a saloon at the south­
west corner of Harrison Avenue and Riddle Street in 1857, over the 
door of which he had painted _the sign uFrenchman's Corner," from 
which the locality became ~o designated. In 1868 Willinger erected 
the building at the corner of Spring Grove and Harrison Avenuesr 
removing both the business and the sign to this corner. Since his 
death the n~me has been changed to "Fort Thomas." the business 
now being conducted by M. W. Thomas, but the neighorhoo<l is still 
known as Frenchman's Corner. From this point to ·Millcreek was 
known as Goose Town, the name being deri ve<l from the large 
number of geese allowed to run at large. For se\·eral years there 
was a brewery on Harrison Avenue near Riddle Street, owned at 
various ti1nes by Michael Beck, Beck & Bauer and Beck & Bogen. 

The Benckenstein family was one of the earliest in this locality. 
John Christian Benckenstein, a gardner and florist, owned a large 
tract of land between Harrison. and Queen City Avenues, Brighton 
Street and the Bogen property, where he located in 1830. In 1864: he 
gave the right of way through his property for Spring Grove Avenue. 
About this titne he erected a building intended for a brewery, which, 
however, he converted in to a concert and dance hal 1, in connection 
with which he had. a restaurant and summer garden, where is now 
located the mammoth plant of the P. R. :tvlitchell Company. The 
brewery of Hochenleitner & Renner was al the south-west corner of 
Harrison Avenue and Division Street, now McLean Avenue until 
about 1870, part of the building being occupied by John Taubald's 
saloon, who was later _at the corner of Harrison Avenue and Brighton 
Street. During the forties and fifties there was a Jewish cemetery 
adjoining the brewery property on Division Street. 

The building which has for many years been the homestead of 
Willian1 Buck, father-in-law of Deputy Sheriff Jacou Cormany, was 
originally the home of James See. Mr. Buck located here in 1855 
and was for some years in the hog bladder trade and later in the 
meat business, in both of which he was successful, becoming an 
extensive real estate owner. He erected the buildings occupied by 
Dr. A. J. Hofling's drug store and Joseph Dumont's grocery. Goetz's 
Park, a garden after the fashion of Benckenstein·s, was at th~ north­
west corner of Harrison Avenue and Brighton Street, now Buck 
Street, where later was the residence of Ferd. Zimmermann, a wine 
merchant, brother-in-law of Judge, John B. Stall,,. Adjoining this 
property are now located the extensive plants of J. Dornette & Bro., 
office furniture manufacturers, and the :Railway Supply and Manu­
facturing Company, successors to Joseph Joseph & Bros. Another of 
the early- taverns, now a landmark, was the Port Cincinnati House, 
later the Western Avenue House, at the south-east corner of Harrison 
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KEY TO ILLUSTRATIO~ ON OPPOSITE PAGE. 

1--Brighton (No. 13) Fire Engine House. Photo by John Hoffmann Jr. 2-Mohawk Place. 
Photo by Chas. F. Reimann. 3--View of Dayton StreeL. Photo bv Chas. F. Reimann. 4-Site of 
Brighton House. Photo by Rombach & Groene. 5-Buck BuiidinJi?:. Photo by_ L. Schaetzle. 
6-York Street Police Station. Photo by Louis W. Sauer, Jr. 7-Brighton Post Office (Station B;. 
Photo by Fred W. Scholl · 
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\NM. KLEEMAN, 
J\i\anufacturer of 

OFFICE, STORE, 

BANK and SALOON 

FIXTURES. 
TELEPHONE WEST 313 

DRUG STORE FURNITURE A 

SPECIAL TY. 

n. w. eor. n1ntb and Jrttman Hvt.t 

Have You a Gas Stove? 

If Not, Why Not? 
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and Western Avenues which was owned at various times by Philip 
Schoelenberg, Gottlieb Schoettker and Charles Holle. On the north 
side of Harrison opposite Western Avenue was the distillery of Fred. 
Arleth. 

Along with the vegetable gardens there were a nuiµber of brick­
yards and dairies in the mill creek bottoms north and south of here. 
Fred. Hoff 1nann, brother of Philipp and Michael, Sr., established an 
extensive dairy on Spring Grove Avenue north of Thomas Street, now 
Queen City Avenue, in 1861, combining with it the business of trading 
in malt feed. The malt, after passing through the brewing_ process, 
was bought on contract and sold to dairymen. John Heck, on Aila'n­
tbus Street, and Peter Schaurer, previous to establishing what ts 

now F. J. Meder's saloon and M. Krumm~s boarding house, were in 
the same business. Henry Schmitt, Casper Fenzel, Gottlieb Beigel, 
Michael Fries, Dosch & Torner and Charles F. Schwenkmeyer, father 
of Dr. G. F. and William H. Sch,venkmeyer, the latter of the Queen 
City Coffee and Spice Mills, and Mrs. Andrew Jergens, ,vere the 
reprcs~ntat~ve coopers. 

F~rdinand Diekmann, inventor and manufacturer, and John H. 
Noll are among the pioneer business men and other of the early 
families were those of Jacob 1\ilandery, dairyman and saloonist, grand­
father of Jacob Mandery; Henry Janson, gardner; Jacob Pfeffer, 
distiller; William Traxel, ~ooper; Marx .Daiker, brickmason; Fred. 
Ganzemiller, stone cutter; John '\Vuest, M. B. Eichner and Adam 
Renner, saloonists, and Chris. Gabbenesch, Geo, Spiesz, Henry Hase­
brock, B. Ruberg, Schone & Hoernschemeyer and Geo. Abel, tailors. 

Perhaps the oldest running business in Brighton to-day is the 
brewery established under the name of the F hiladelphia Brewery by 
George M. Herancourt in 18-!8 at Ernst Station, now Brighton 
Station, which is ·the present establishment of the Herancourt Brew­
ing Company. The hills on the north and west of Brighton offered 
excellent stone quarrying opportunities and among those who 
were engaged in this business "Tere John Zinck and Rudolph Lut­
terbe_y, of Lu tterbey & Muehlhaeuser, n1altsters, and more recently 
President of the Herancourt Brewing Company. John Deck was an 
early cellar excavator, and J.B. H. Nolte a11d H. Wi1lian1 Kopp were 
sewer tappers. D1etrich Reinhart was one of the early grocers at 
Harrison Avenue and Brighton Street and Chris. Gobrecht at the 
cortier of Turner Street. Norbert Graf, manufactured hand-made 
horse shoe nails, a business now extinct, on Western Row near Free­
man, employing five or six men. 

The families ·of David Hummel, founder of the David Hummel 
Building Company, and W. P. Hulbert were early ones on Freeman 
Avenue. William L. Gadd um. many Jears a prominent insurance man, 
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National Ice Company, 
E. C. PISTNER, Pres. and Treas. 
ALEX. HULSBECK, Solicitor. 

WHOLESALE AND RETAIL 
DEALERS IN---~ ICE 

ePPleE AND STeRE H0USE: Dayton St. and McLean live. 

LARGE CONTRACTS SOLICITED. PROMPT DELIVERY. 
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1-Charles G. Schmidt. 2-C. E. Spielman. ~-Jacob Stoeckle 4-John J. Dupps. 5-A. W. Gaddum. 6-J. B. 
Lagemann. 7-Charles Kobmann. 8-Courad Meister. 9-Dr. M. L. Amick. 10-Dr. George 1:!;ger, Jr. 11-John 
Hoffmann. 12-Anthony Schemel. 13-Herman L. Wittenburg. 14-John Hoffmann, Jr. 15-.Leonhard Martz. 



F. H. WILMS. 

• 

Cbt fito. JI. Cbaytr 
earptt £1taning and 
Rug manufacturing eo. 

2209 to 2215 EASTERN AVENUE, 

ONCINNA TI, O. 

F. H. WILMS, Pres. and Treas. 

TELEJ>HeNB NeRTH 1710. 

The Geo A .. Thayer Carpet Cleaning and Rug Manufacturing Co. is 
one of the oldest concerns in this line in the west and is one of the few 
that actually clean carpets by compressed air, which does not injure the 
finest fabrics, but does thoroughly clean all materials of dirt and dust. 

In the Rug Manufacturing branch, their reputation for fine work is 
national and their products are to be seen in homes of every state in the 
Union. 

These rugs are made from carpet scr~p and also from. old carpet, and 
make a soft, warm,. durable and pretty rug, a visit to the factory or a 
communication to the firm will receive prompt attention. 



father of A. L. Gaddutn, of the A. Sander Packing Company, and A. 
W. Gaddum Vice-President of the Cincinnati Butchers' Supply Com­
pany, was a pioneer York S~reet resident. Among the prominent 
families of Dayton Street are those of General A. Hickenlooper, E. 
A. ·:B""erguson, William Goodall, Dr. M. L. Amick, Louis J. Hauck, 
H. J. A. Severet. J. G. Hartke, fat her of George Hartke,· the hard ware 
merchant, and Ferdinand Karrmann, retired veteran bookbinder 
and present treasurer of the German Mutual Fire Insurance Company. 
Mr. Karrmann when about ten years of age was the carrier of the 
Weltbuerger, the first German newspaper, (weekly) published in 
Cincinnati. On the whole of his route extending from the city water­
works to Benckenstein's garden, which be covered on foot, he had 
about ten subscribers. 

Ainong former residents of Dayton Street were Mayor George B. 
Hatch, Governor J. D. Cox, Governor R. M. Bishop, Adolphus H. 
Smith,. George W. Skaats, S. L. Snodgrass, Jacob Wirth, John 
Hauck, Joseph Goettle, James H. Laws, Judge George Lindemann, 
F. J. Mayer, postmaster under President Lincoln and latt!r county 
treasurer; John and Joseph Taylor. Ralph McCracken, Louis Balluf, 
Ferd. Brown, and Rev. Edward Harwood, who was the original of the 
character of c.senator Bird" in Harriet Beecher Stowe's Uncle Tom's 
Cabin, the incident in which Senator Bird assists Eliza in her escape 
having really occurred. The Harwood residence at the sout~east corner 
of Dayton and Baymiller Streets, which was later occupied by Jud~e 
Moses F. Wilson and which is now the home of John U Windisch, 
Jr., secreted many fugitive slaves during the troublesome days. 

Much of the landscape gardening hereabouts was done by Abra­
ham Hoffmann a brother of Mrs. John Deremo, Sr. On Dayton Street 
opposite Whiteman there was for a number of years a pottery owned 
by Pollock & Bailey and Coultney & Maloney. The family of Herman 
Dierkes, father of J. H. and L. B. Dierkes, of the New York Life 
Insurance Company, was one of the pioneer ones here. Frank Buegler, 
a brickmason; Frank Benz, a carpenter, and Andrew Brehm and Jacob 
De·wald, stonemasons, resided in this immediate neighborhood, and 
the home of J. A. Gall was long on Linn Street south of Bank. 
Among the pioneer residents of Bank Stree~ were William Taylor, 
P. Arendt, A. Hagemann, Nick Woll, Michael Peter, Anton Wagner, 
Wendel Joachim, William Runge, H. Sicking, Charles Blankenfield, 
Louis Benninger, Charles Weiss, Daniel Robinson, Ferdinand Zim­
merer, Valentine Heyl, Dr. Louis P. Hottendorf, Mrs. John Lorenz, 
John J. Eilers, Charles Pohlmeyer, and Charles Schmidt, father of 
Prof. Louis Schmidt and Charles W. Schmidt, of the Sam W. Weidler 
Company. The family of Xavier Hunt, is one of the oldest remaining, 
Mrs. Hunt and her son Joseph still living where the family has resi-
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1-Mrs. Jacob ~toeckle. 2-:\frs. Gottfried Pistner. 3-Mrs. M. Saeger. it-Mri:i. H. L Witten­
burg. 5-Mrs John Hoffmann. 6-Mrs John Hoffmann, Jr. 7-Mrs. Leot1hard Martz. 8-Mrs. 
Charles G. Schmidt. 9-Mrs C. Meister. 10-Mrs. F. W. Trlnkle. 11 -Mrs J. B. Lagemann. 
12--Mrs. H. C. Wendel. 
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J. Oornette & Bro. 

Long Dist. Tel. w. 40. 
1250•1258 HARRISON AVE. 

CINCINNATI, D., U. S. A. 

Established 1877. 1902. 

JOHN METZGER, 
1\i\cLEAN AVENUE MACHINE SHOP. 

Machinist· and Pipe Fitter, 
OFFICE AND WORKS: No. 2165 McLEAN AVENUE • 

.;J,Jl,.;J,~ 

Special Machinery Built to Order. Repairing of Machinery a Specialty. 

We Solicit Your Work. 
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W. T. Wagner'& &on&, 
INSIST UPON WAGN ER'C 
HAVING. . . . J 

The only PURE and CORRECT ARTIFICIAL MINERAL 

WATERS in Cincinnati to-day. -

DISTILLED WATER ONLY USED. TELEPHONE US. 

Seiters, Lithia, Vichy, Kissingen, Club Soda, 

Hunyadi and Others. 

No. 1910-1926 RACE STREET. 

BtRNARD &ICKINfi, 
MANUFACTURER OF ALL KINDS OF 

SLOT MACHINES. 

1931-1933 PREEnAN AVENUE, 

Telephone W. 838. CINCINNATI, 0. 
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ded since 1844, on Bank Street near Baymiller. John Dorst located 
adjoining the old Clearwater homestead, which still stands at the 
southwest corner of Bank and Baymiller, in 1833. The early bakers 
here were Jacob Moschel, B. Windoffer and Louis Diemer, Andrew 
Weis succeeding the latter. J. H. Huelsmann, Bernard Sicking, 
Philip Volz and George Helmig were the early grocers and John 
Hoffmann, Sr., Michael Schickling and Jacob Seibel the butchers. 
One of the pioneer ~amilies of this vicinity was that of J. H. 
Groene, the fat her of Theodore and J. C. Groene. The homes of 
Jacob Schneider, Michael Hoffmann and Pierce Gorman, father 

I 

of Mrs. J. D. Smith, were on Ailanthus Street. John Blackbur11, 
J ose.ph Schoe·nberger and Henry Mad aka, all of whom attended 
school in the old frame building on Baymiller Street, are the oldest 
of Brighton's butchers still in business. . Schoenberger and Madaka 
reside 0...1 Baymiller Street, where is also situated the home of 
John Rettig, the artist, whose wife is ·a daughter of Mrs. (Milligan) 
Madaka. · 

George C. Galbraith, remembered as "Scotch George," father of 
George W. Galbraith, of the Laidlaw-Dunn-Gordon Company, was 
active in public affairs and represented the Twenty-third ward in the 
old city council. The same neighborhood als·> furnished the late 
Frank Kirchner to public office. 

Other Brighton butchers of prominence were Harrison and Perry 
Wintcn, Charles Leggett, Thomas, John and William Stewart, N. B. 
Fall. Nie and Henry Robinson, Thomas Neighbors, Henry Tesh, 
Henry, Evan and John Schoenberger, John Homan, Adam Pinger, 
George an·d Ed Blackburn, H. F. Teetor, John Kahley, Herman and 
Ferdinand Witte, D. Hettesheimer, James, John and William 
Reynolds, Jacob Friday, Louis Fox, Balser Kabel, Joseph, James, 
William an<l George Fischer, Joseph Lawrence, Samuel Ackemeyer, 
Michael Miller, John and Thomas Kirby, Nicholas Sonntag, Adam 
Reehl, John Sturm, J aeob and Balser Sehies and Franz Orth. 

Dr. H. Hittner took delight in instructing Brighton children in ·the 
Thespian and Lyric arts. Other pioneer residents of Brighton were Nie 
and Henry Roll, John X. Kramer, former Lieutenant of Police; John P. 
Loge, Ex-Postmaster; Henry Bohling, Henry Gessert, Theo. Boiland_, 
Adam Hock, Henry Dreyer, William Dupuis, Philip Lishawa, J~ B. 
Vonderheide, W. Wagner, NieholasBruck, Dan'l Buehler, HenryTenk­
mann, Felieian Brunner, John Launspach, Wendel Gruesser, W. J. 
Rothwell, Julius Geisenhofer, Peter Reinstatler, Joseph Klueber, 
William Schaeller, Michael Ohmer, B. Herzog, George 1 ushey, Louis 
Fischer, father of William G. l4"'ischer, the range manufacturer; Henry 
Nagel, Frank G. Jobson, Harrison Dexter, John Metzger, father of 
John Metzger, proprietor of the Mc.Lean Avenue machine shops ; 
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THB w M~ VE>WBLL ee. 
2525-2531 SPRING GROVE A VE., CINCINNATI, 0. 

Manufacturers of brass goods 

for the complete equipment. of 

the engine and boiler room. 

Regrinding, reversible disk 

valves, ·lever throttle valves, 

open way gate valves, injectors, 

sight feed engine lubricators, 

sight feed glass oilers, crank pin 

oilers, oil pumps, grease cups, .. 
chime and plain whistles, unions, 

gauge cocks, brass fittings, etc. 

· All of handsome patterns, neat designs and warranted as to quality 

and workmanship. Being conveniently at hand, will be pleased to have 

you call and personally examine into the merits of our manufacture. 

THE. GILT EDGE, 
8!10·BANK· S'fRBET. 

. ' - .t . 

JOSEPH HUNT, 
Imported and Domestic Wines, Gins, Brandies, 

Al.e and Porter. Fine L:quors and Cigars. 

A. WIPPER, 

Milk, eream and 

Ice eream. 

Phone M. 3101. 906 RACE ST. 

MORRIS MOHR, 

513 Walnut St., Cincinnati, O. 

OPP. POST OFFICE. 

Telephone Main 1656. 

HAUCK'S BEER. 
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YORK STREET M. E. 
ST. LUKE'S EPISCOPAL. 

. ' . · .. ·:z~:;~:;,. :'~''"~t~;~-~7\ 
,.,. .# ... ·. __ ,~,: 

"!JI . • . ; . 

ST. AUGUSTIN'S GERMAN 
FIRST GERMAN REFORMED. 

... 
. -.:' 

~·· •,·A: 
. ~-... ; .. 

STATION F. NINTH ST. BAPTIST. 
FIRST GERMAN PRESBYTERIAN. 



£lark ~ Sptrbtr, 
TEAMSTERS~ 

LIGHT AND HEAVY HAULING 

PROMPTLY ATTENDED TO. 

FOUNDRY AND MACHINE 

HAULING A SPECIAL TY. 

STABLES: 

920-924 State Ave., Phone W. 1101 
2139-2141 McLean Ave.. " 834 

WM. H. SCHWEIKERT. EDWIN G. THAYER. 

Scbw.tiktrt 
.~ Cbaytr, 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

& NOTARIES PUBLIC. 

OSTERFELD BUIL0INB, 
OPP. BRIGHTON GERMAN BANK. 

Teleph011e West 1356 Y; 

H. F. Oehlschlaeger, PHARMAc1sT. 

McMICKEN AVENUE PHARMACY. 

McMICKEN AVENUE AND MOHAWK PLACE. 

Prescriptions a specialty. 

TELEPHONE MAIN 2407. 
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Louis Geilfus, father of C. H. Geilfus, of the Andrew Jergens Co.; 
Gottfried Hegner, Wm. Pfitzer, John Meister, John Odenbach, John 
Nasse, Mrs. William Brown, Mrs. Anton Schaffer, Mrs. Jacob 
Muehlamann, Mrs. Charles Weissmann, the Endres, Schober, Busch, 
Pons, Ginandt, Kostermann, Kinley, O'Leary, Duffy, Maegley, Faeth, 
Weismiller, Mason, Hust, Specht, Griso, Jauch, Pellens, Scultetus, 
Mehrenfield and Kerth families. Isaac J. Miller. who is largely 
responsible for the tra~sformation of the Brighton hill. top into a 
picturesque resident suburb-, bas resided there since 1866. It was 
largely through his instrumentality that the Fairview incline was 
erected and the Fair,riew and the Cross Town electric routes were 
established. It ~as here that cannons were planted during the civil 
war to guard against an. attack by Kir.by, and here, too, occurred 
many encounters between the Brighton and the Mohawk boys in the 
conquest for superiority of "neighborhood tribes." These two 
factions. however, never failed to combine in one common cause when 
the ''T~xans 'from the territory south of Liberty Street invaded their 
domain. 

The first house on the Browne estate when subdivided after the 
death of Samuel J. Browne in 1872 was erected by Peter Huber three 
years later and now stands at No. 540 Conroy. Street. Some of the 
early settlers here were William Endebrock, Sr., Charles Weitzel, 
Barney Schmidt, rl.ugust Beckmann, John Deremo, F. J. Werner, 
Frederick Plogstedt, Jacob Fath, Anton Mueller, Edward, Goodwin, 
and the Essel, Fox,. Blankenbuehler, Klotter, Geiger, Freyer, Exter­
kamp, Lindetnann, Gerst, Bruns, Guenther, Runck, Riemenscbneider, 
Von der Ahe, Schulze, Kasper, Bock, Michel, Stadler Alexander and 
Dannenhol<l f amities. 

Among the oldest employes of the Stree.t Railway Company now 
in the employ of the Tra~tion Company in the the Brighton district 
are James Ray, who has served forty three years; Patrick Welsh, now 
serving out his thirty-seventh year; Isaac S. McCracken, who began 
as driver thirty-five years ago and is now receiver at the Brighton· 
office; John McNair, a conductor for twenty-eight years; Jacob 
Kreidler, who has been a driver and motorman for twenty-seven years, 
and Philip Koenig or ''King" as he is generally known, now Division 
Superintendent, who has been in the service thirty-two years. ·Daniel 
Collins was one of the first drivers on the old John Street horse car 
line. John Harris, the present Superintendent, had charge of the 
Brighton mule pens of W. H. Stephens & Co. from 1862 to 1867, since 
which time he has been in the street railway service. 

John Graham, has been the driver of the engine at the Bank 
Street Engine House for twenty-seven years, and Walter S. Phares 
and John Vetter, both of whom have served most of the time there, 
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KEY TO ILLUSTRATION ON OPPOSITE PA.GE. 

1-George Hartke. 2-Frank Wessels. 3-Gus Boeh. 4-H. W, Hamann. 5-Dr. S H, Spencer. 
6-Louis Schaetzle 7-Dr. Joseph Kindel. S-Dr. Daniel F. Kindel. 9-George H Osterfeld. 
10-F. W. Trinkle. 11-C. H. W. Weber.. 12--Dr. H. C. Wendel. 13--:-J. G. McGarvey. 14--Bernard 
Sicking. 15-Walter A. Taylor. 16-Arthur A. Taylor. t7--Dr. C. C. Agin. 18-H. Fred 
Oehlschlaeger. 19--R. E. Richardson. 20-Richard J. Hauser. 21-Edward J. Hannum. 
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PHILIP RENNER, 
Residence, 460 Warner St., Fairview Heights. 

Telephone West 728 Y. 

OTTO J. RENNER, 
Residence, Southview A ve.i Fairview Heights. 

Telephone West 728 X. 

RENNER & RENNER, 
Attorneys and 

CoL1nsellors at Law 

Rooms 203, 20!1 and 205 1 

BELL BLeeK. 

N. f. tor. 6th and Vine Sts. 

CINCINNATI. 0. 

· TELEPHONE MAIN 579 

C. B. FISHBURN, 
President. 

tbt Snow Jlakt caundry eo. 
GOODS CALLED FOR 

AND DELIVERED.· 

Telephone, Main 833. 

Office and Works: 1218-1220 RACf STRfET, 

Jrtdtrick w. moort, 
ATTORNEY AND 

COUNSELLOR AT LAW. 

S. W. Cor. Fourth and Main Sts~ 

Cincinnati, 0. 

ATTORNEY AND 
COUNSELLOR AT LAW. 

S. W. Cor. Fourth and Walnut Sts. 

Cincinnati, 0. 

NOTARY PUBLIC. Phone M. 3155. 

M. Sandhaas and 
Fred. Wuest, 

West End Wagon Works. 
GBNBRRL eRRRIRGB 
HND WD.Ge)N Wf>RltS. 

No. 2129 Barnard Street. 

,t\.11 orders promptly attended to 
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William ]. tox, 
THE BRIGHTON 

_- PLUMBER, 
.. :. ~ ~ 

Ga$\.fitter and Sewer Tapper. 
. :· ·:-: ~\.:~)\ . ' . 

Estfqi-J(f~s· Furnished on A pplicatiou. . 
· ·. ·- .. in ,vork Guaranteed. 

Beer Pumps of All Kinds Repaired. 

2,66 CENTRAL AVENUE, 

ClNCINNA TI, 0. 

TELEPHONE 811 WEST. 

MWAY~ ATIHACIM: 

Ill~ ~-~ . 
NADEDY ·' 1 

··-----·· ~,. 
ffllENG.CO. ----­
IUililllN 
CINCINNATI 

f airbaok8, ~or8el!- Co. 
307 WALNUT STREET, CINCINNATI, 0. 

JI,~~~~-

FAIRBAN-KS STANDARD 
SCALES. 

Fairbanks, Morse Steam l?umps. 
Fairbanks, Morse Gas Engines. 

Trucks of all kinds, grocers' fixtures,· steam engines, 
steam boilers, railway tanks, railway hand and push cars 
and railway supplies in general. 

GIVE US A CALL .. 
---------------- -----
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have b~en with the _city fire department about fifty years, the former 
being Captain of the company for a ~number of years. William Phares 
and Joseph G. Weil, members of the Department, were Brighton boys. 

John Schatzmann, was the pioneer Brighton policeman. William 
B. Hanks, now doing patrol duty in the Brighton district, has been 
a member of the police department for twenty-one years, and John 
Wambsgans, Marcellus Abel and Louis Albrecht, members of the 
department, spent their scnool days in Brighton. Herman Schroeder 
has been a merchant policeman for eighteen years and Joseph Elber·t 
for ten years. 

Fred Pfiester was Superintendent of the Union Stockyards for a 
number of years from 1870 and Peter F. Vester, now weigher, began 
his service here as manager of t!?e feed department in 1869. Adam 
Heck was employed in thi_s department from 1863 to 1898, and R. F. 
and Charles Enyart were connected with the company for many years. 

Charles C. Couden, became the first mail carrier in Brighton in 
1870, previous to which it was a suburban route served by mounted 
carrier. Henry Smith has been Superintendent of Station B­
Brighton, since August 7, 1901. 

The Fourth Intermediate School on Baymill~r ~treet was erected 
in 1851. For twenty years it was the Fourteenth District, being 
changed to.the Fourth Intermediate in 1871. Prof. George F._ Sands 
was the F rincipal from 1857 to 1901, when he was transferred to the 
Third Intermediate, being succeeded by Prof. Edward H. Pritc1:J.ard. 
The present teachers are Messrs. Sawyer, Hahn, Lotter, Siecke, 
Schwartz and the Misses Cameron, Ambrose, Benninger, See, Pape, 
Meltzer, Crumley, Hopkins, Hasselbach, Meinhardt, Otte, Danks, 
Bettie and Alnette Wilson. 

The Twenty-seventh _District, known as the Riddle Street School, 
was _built in l!j71. John B. Scheidemantle, Lewis Freeman and C C. 
Long have served as Principals here and Lafayette Bloorµ bas been 
the Principal since 1886. A juvenile mandolin, guitar and violiu 
orchestra of forty pieces, of which William· Schaefer is instructor, 
and the Lafayette Bloom Military Band and Drum Corps are unique 
features of this school. The teachers are Messrs. Schaefer, Reszke, 
Parker and the Misses Siebel, ~ugh, Wolf, Sullivan, Dressel, 
Hacking, ~Ieyersieck, Friedeborn, Cohen, Radcliffe, Strack, Foerster, 
Allen, Palmer, Pistorius, Schmitthenner and Tuechter. 

The building of the Twenty-eighth District School was erected 
in 1880 on Browne Street. Prof. W. · H; Remley has ·been the 
Principal since 1894, Christopher Rapp and E. A. Renner having 
preceeded him. The present corps of teachers is comprised of the 
following named: F. J. Kell.e_r, Misses Depp€, Ren_nick, Baader, 
Halley, Oeh, Winkelmann, Newman, Sobolewski, Romes, -Hess, 

-89-



Herman Lichtenberg 
MANUFACTURER OF 

Fine 
Cigars. 

Smoke Our Celebrated 

City Hall Cigar. 

N. E. Car. Pavilion and Belvedere Streets, 

CJNCINNATls 01110. 

Joseph Taylor it, Co., WHOLESALE 
OROCERS. 

Agents for LIVERPOOL, G. A. and OHIO RIVER SALT. 

Telephone 95 West. No. 2J:l3 CENTRAL AVENUE. 

tdward f. Robiseh, ¥?:T1~-NTING. 
WHITENING. 

PAINTER AND DECORATOR. 

COR. VINE AND CLIFTON A VE. and J:4J:9 ELM ST. 

PURE· W11TE.R. 
Is more essential than pure food. 

Most food is cooked. Water is a culture 
medium for Typhoid germs. They mul­
_tiply and thrive in clear water. 

Pasteur Germ-rroof Water filter 
Holds back both germs and mud. 

WILLIAM J. filBSON, Agent, 
318 W. 11th St. 

mattbtw Dugan, 
OENERALCONTRACTOR 

All Kinds of Cement Work. 

Concrete Cellar Walls a Specialty. 

2J:42 GILBERT AVENUE, 

CINCINNATI, 0. 
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Holder, Pruess., Bohlander, Dewald, Monter, Schulze, l\Iary E. and 
Alice Copen. 

The York Street M. E. Church was dedicated in 18-!-1 as Maley 
Chapel, receiving its present name four years later. An1ong its 
pastors have been Bishop J. M. Walden and Rev. Granville Moody. 
Rev. Edward McHugh is now serving his fourth year as its pastor. 
The Church of the Cross was built by an English speaking 
congregation during the forties, some years later becoming a German 
Reformed and in 1875 the St. Luke's Episcopal congregation ca1ne 
into possession of the property. Rev. Paul Matthews has been the 
Rector since 1896. St. Augustine's Catholic Church was erected in 
1853, at which time services where conducted in English. It became 
a German church in 1857 ! since which time its pastors have been Revs. 
Thomas Boulger, Bernhard Hengehold, Bernhard Menge, Paul 
Leopold and ~\ .. ther A. H. Walburg, who recently celebrated the 
twenty-fifth anniversary of his pastorate. The First German 
Presbyterian Church was founded in 1856 its pastors having been Revs. 
Winnes, Lichtenstein, Seibert, Hortsch and Richard Lange, the 
present incumbent. Blanchard Chapel, now Station F of the Ninth 
Street Baptist Church, was built during the sixties by t1 e English 
Methodist Mission -~ociety, and became a German Church in 1871. 
Its pastors have been Revs. Goider, Traessle, Roser and Schimmelfenn 
and Herzer. A congregation organized in 1845 erected the First 
German Reforn1ed Church in 1888 and removed· from Eltn and 
Fifteenth Streets. Its pastors have been Revs. Kroh, Gerhart, Rust, 
Lichtenstein, Kuelling, Bachmann and Hagelskamp. 

The Brighton of today is a revelation. The transformation has 
been marvelous. A few years has wrought wonderful changes. It is 
now the undisputed industrial bee-hive of the Great Queen City of the 
West. It is an itnportant adjunct to the gigantic manufacturing and 
commercial community comprising one of the foremost and important 
cities in the United States, and it is contributing its full share to the 
vast aggregate of prosperity, advancement, progress and enterprise. 
Where only a few years ago there were vacant lots, garden patches and 
miniature enterprises there are now mammoth manufacturing concerns 
giving employment to thousands of workmen and distributing the 
products of their labor to all parts of the world. In n1any branches of 
industrial life Brighton ranks in the front. She boasts of the largest 
toilet soap plant in_ the world and likewise a feather and down industry 
that is second to none. On every hand and at every turn one sees 
energy, shrift, push and vim. The present. of Brighton is gloriously 
prosperous and the future if propitious. Brighton has advantages 
that are inviting and unsurpassed. Thus growth continues year after 
year. Not the least is the superior shipping facilities afforded. 
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JACOB FRl!U~D. Pres. JOH N FELIX 
Cbt 1acob Jrtund · 
· Roofing to. STOVESanct HOUSE 

Tile, Ti11, Slate, Actinolite, .-\sphalt and 
Composition Roofers. 

Manufacturers of 
Galvanized Iron Cornices, Skylights, Etc. 

TELEPHONE-NORTH 684. 

·FURNISHING 
GOODS. 
Jobbing and Roofing. 

_ 1332 BA YMILLER STREET, 

JULIUS FEY, 
Teamster. 

AND ALL KINDS OF HAlTLING. 

2174 WESTERN AVE. 

A. Schemel, RELIABLE JEWELER, 
++ 

Dealer in WAT~HES, CLOCKS, DIAMONDS, 
JEWELRY AND SILVER\VARE. 

REPAIRING A SPECIALTY. 

TEI.,EPHONE MAIN 2508 

No. 1953 Central A venue. 

C. L. FETTWEIS & SONS, 
MONUMENTS IN GRANITE AND MARBLE. 

Large Assortrpent of Tomb~Stones, 
· Grave-Marks, Etc. 3 W. McMicken Ave., near Vine St. 

GEO. J. RAMSEY. A. W. CONE. 

RRMSEY & eeNE, Teamsters, 
Foundry and Machine Hauling a Specialty. 

1276 Harrison Ave. TELEPHONE W. 1183. Cincinnati, Ohio. 



I I 

TWEN'l'Y-SEVEN"l'H DISTRICT SCHOOL. · FOUR TH INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL. 

PROF. LAFAYETTE RLOOM. PROF. W. H H.EMI.RY. 

TWESTY-EIGHTH DISTRICT SCHOOL. 
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Buy Your MUSIC and MUSICAL INS.IRUMENTS 

AT GROENE' S, s. E. Cor. Race and Arcade. 

ROBT. R. REYNOLDS, 
Pres and Gen. Mgr. 

H. S. WINSLOW, 
Vice-Pres. 

J AMbS CULLEN, JR., 
Sec. and Treas. 

THE ICE DELIVERV CO. 

Wholesale and Retail 
Distributors of ICE. 

General t,ffices, llll, ll5 and ZIC, l'erin Building. 

N. W. COR. 5th AND RACE STS. 

TELEPHONE MAIN 284 AND 907. 

]ostpb ROtll, 
WINES, LIQUORS, CIGARS. 

TELEPHONE BUILDING, 
Opp. Chamber of Commerce. 

VINE STREET. 

]ostpb Rotll £aft 
No. lt E. FIFTH ST. 

Re ELL & eReNE. Proprietor. 

W. A. WIRTHLIN. TBLBPHeNE MHIN ~096. C. J. WIRTHLIN. 

WIRTH LIN BROS Leather,Rubberand 
Cotto!1 Belting, Ho_se and 

■ t Packmgs, Mechanical 
Rubber Goods, Wood 

208 W. SEVENTH ST., (Odd Fellows Temple). Pulleys, Emery Wheels. 

J. ~ACK, ~eat ~arket, 
The Best Fresh and Cured 

Meats in the Market · l l 73 HARRISON A VE. 



ro enumerate the industrial enterprise~ of Brighton would be an 
end1ess task. They are of every character and kind, conspicuous 
among them being the following. The Andrew Jergens Company, 
manufacturer of toilet soaps and perfumes; the P. R. Mitchell 
Company, feathers and down, William Dock & Co., soaps; the Schacht 
Manufacturing Company, carriages and vehicles; the William Powell 
Company, brass founders; J. Dornette & Bro., desks and office 
furniture; J.B. Blettner & Co., machinists; the J. H. Day Company, 
manufacturer of all kinds· of machinery; L. J. Miller, elevators and 
machinery; Meyer Bros. Furniture Company, the F. Miller Vinegar 
and Pickle Company, the Brighton Flour Mill, the McLean Avenue 
Machine Shops· and many others .. 

Rudolph Suhre, founder of the Anchor Tannery, came to this 
country in 1864 at the age of 21 and settled at once in Camp Wash­
ington, where he was employed as a laborer in various tanneries until 
he worked himself up to the supe.l in tendency of the Ballauf tannery 
on Straight Street. This position he occupied untill 1883, when he 
started his own business on a very modest Reale. This business has 
steadily grown until the plant now covers a space of 122 by 170 feet, 
the buiL ing being a modern three-story structure. Mr. Suhre died in 
1901, since which time the business has been successfully managed by 
his two sons. 

Long before the establishment of the Brighton German Bank the 
urgent need and n~cessity of such a home institution was felt by the 
growing business interests of this community. For :fifteen years John 
Hauck, the late brewer, fostered the idea of es ablishing such a 
concern here and at frequent intervals sought to interest others in the 
project, but it remained for Mr. Max Mosler to conceive and design 
the proper mode of procedure and it was not until the latter part of 
1898 that his efforts resulted in the successful culmination. On the 
afternoon of November 4, that year, a meeting of about fifty repre­
sentatives of Brighton, Camp Washington and Fairmount business 
interests was held in Brighton Hall, at which $60.000 of the $100.000 
proposed capital stock was subscribed in less than an hour. This was 
the beginning of the success of the enterprise, and in less than two 
months the organization ·was completed under the direction of an 
executive committee composed of Ma?C Mosler, Andrew Jergens, Frank 
Haffner, George Klotter, Robert H. West, James D .. Smith, Rudolph 
Suhre, Ferdinand Dieckmann and Theodore Groene. 

January 3, 1899 was a day of much rejoicing in Brighton. The 
hope of years had, as if by ma~ic, become a reality-the long and 
anxious wish of the great and small interests, indivi.:.ual and collective, 
was fulfilled. It was at 9 o'clock on the morning of this day that the 
Brighton German Bank was actually called into life. It then began 
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an existence that has already been far more successful, profitable and 
beneficial than the most sanguine among those interested in its creation. 
had hoped for. It is today one of the recognized substantial financial 
institutions in the ·great group of which Cincinnati proudly boasts, and 
is officered and managed by the strongest business and financial men of 
the community. Its officers, stockholders, depositors and patrons, 
representing all nationalities, religious beliefs and characters of 
business, constitute a contented, harmonious and prosperous business 
family, bespeaking the advancement, progress, enterprise, .thrift and 
frugality of one of the busiest communities of the Great Queen City 
of the West-Brighton, a veritable bee-hive of industry. A fitting 
climax of the early success and progress of this institution is the 
purchase of the ground upon which the old Brighton House stood 
until it was demolished in 1873, upon which _will be erected a modern 
banki~g and office building. 

Two generations of Muths in the bee and honey enterprise have 
made Brighto11 famous, Fred W., now at the head of the Fred W. 
Muth Company, followingin the footsteps of his father, Charles W. 
Muth, the famous apiculturist, whose knowledge and peculiar abilities 
he inherited. _He knows the business in its every detail, from 
beginning to end. With an ordinary common scp.ool education young 
Muth began life in a wholesale grocery. Later he w~s connected 
.with Mr. Weber, who had purchased the old Muth _stand, and who, 
with his assistance, perpetuated the business to which he succeeded. 
Mr. Muth recently organized a stock company, of which he is President 
and manager, which is now conducting an extensive honey, beeswax 
and bee supplies business at the corner of Second and Walnut Streets. 
The success of the enterprise is assured because the name of Muth 
and honey are _inseparable and because of Mr·. Muth's · ability to 
successfully meet all sorts and conditions of competition. 

It has frequently been commented that if necessary Brighton could 
be more self-dependent than any other distinct portion of Cincinnati. 
She has the facilit es for supplying the every want and need of life. 
Her retail stores are the best. The people are not clannish, however, 
but there appears to have been adopted by a sort of general consent 
a motto of "Brighton first, last and all the time." Mrs. A. Gaide 
conducts a rnillinery and dry goods store on the site of the old 
Brighton House, Miss Kate Furtwang]er is one of the fasbionable 
milliners, S. Hutner does an extensive business in ladies and gents 
furnishings and shoes, P. Fleck's ladies furnishing and People's 
Bargain Store are reliable retail establishments ; R. W. Jahn 
is a leader in men's furnishings and hats ; H. Ketterling, in dry 
goods and ladies' outfits; and Henry A. Dick, in furnishing goods, 
gloves, ~lathing·, etc. With all these strictly up-to-date stores, 
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All the Year 'Round I 

~ WHITE ROCK WATERt .JJ 

FOR THE TABLE, FOR BANQUETS, 
IN CAPES, . ·• . AND AT THE BA'R. 

WILMOT J. HA:LL, Sole' Agent. Phone Main 582. 

it is seen that Brightonians .may be well clothed right at home. 
· Foremost among the present day grocers are Joseph Dumont, 

Mrs. M. Saeger and F. William Wuest, and George Stegner and J. 
Mack in the retail meat business. M. Weisbrodt & Son and Isidor 
Klein & Co. are the leading wine merchants, while high-class saloons 
are conducted by Conrad Meister, Gus Boeh, Frank J. Lang, John S. 
Snyder, Philip Metz, Jr., A. Heilmann. H. J. Werbel, Chris. Horst­
mann, John H. Wolf~ Herman L. Wittenburg and M. W. "I'homas. 

Brighton plumbers are F·. W. Trinkle, William J. Fox, Albert 
Niesen and the Oliver Schlemmer Company, and August Huelsman 
conducts a big house furnishing store. G. Boehm has three wall paper 
and picture frame stores in Brighton and the Herbert Furniture 
Company has recently opened a store here. Charles J. Hardig is the 
manufacturer of "Bull Dog'' paints, while R. A. Becker & Co. manufac­
ture varnishes and Japans. A. Schemel, who succeeded Geo. Schanz, 
and Louis G. Klotter, at the Brighton Corner, are the jewelers. 

DR. THEO, BANGE. 

Among the. physicians of Brighton are some of 
the fore most 1nen of the medical profession in Cin­
cinnati. Dr. C. C. Agin is one of the most promi­
nent, having been a successful practitioner here for 
a number of years. Former County Coroner Theo. 
Bange has been conspicuously identified with the 
Brighton district for nearly a quarter of a century, 
and other successful ones are Drs. Joseph and D. F. 
Kindel, S. H. Spencer, H. C. "\Vendel, George Eger, 
Jr. and M. L. Amick. Schweikert & Thayes repre­
sent the legal profession in Brighton. Attorneys 
Philip and Otto Renner are practically Brightonians. 

Most of the drug stores of Brighton and Mohawk are old 
establisl:red and historic concerns. Their present owners are H. Fred. 
Oehlschlaeger, Mrs. George Eger, J. Koenig, G. A. Fieber, A. J. Over­
beck, Jr., and Dr. A. J. Hofling. Among the present day cigar·· 
manufacturers are Frank Wessels and Nie Mauderer. Just over the: 
Mohawk line on Stark Street, John Stuck conducts an extensive.; 
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awning, tent and paulin factory. Newhouse Bros, at 11obawk Place; 
B. Schaefers, son of the pioneer, and Lou is Hu tze 1, on Harrison 
Avenue near the arighton Corner, are the blacksmiths and horse shoers 
and P. Kammer, M. Sandhaas and Fred Wuest the carrage and 
wagon makers and repairers. The extensive lumber business of F. F. 
Noble & Co., on Western Avenue, is one of the conspicuous enterprises 
and the firms of Ramsey& Cone, Julius Fey and Yanney & Doar are in 
the hauling· business. J. G. McGarvey & Son are contractors and 
brick masons,. and Charles Arbogast is a harness manufacturer. 
A. Schmidt conducts an extensive stove, tinware and house furnishing 
establishment and William and John Felix are in the same business, 
the former on Wes tern A venue and the latter on Baymiller Street. 
Martin Fisher is the one architect in Brighton, and Buschle & ~chone 
are the representative merchant tailors. 

The confectionery, toy and school supply store of M. Megeber at 
1179 Harrison Avenue, is a rendevouz for Brighton school children, 
who find their wants generally ~upplied there. The Yoder Bath House 
is a novelty in Brighton, being the only one ever located in this part of 
the city. The conveniences it affords have long been needed. 

The Brighton hardware store was established in 1840 by Mr. 
Lender at 971 Central Avenue (old number,) who sold it to L. C. 
Oberheu in 1868 and on March 1, 1892 he was succeeded by George 
Hartke, who moved to the present location in 1897. Mr. Hartke has 
been in the hardware business nealy a quarter of a century, having 
grown into it from a mechanical craftship. 

The spectaculars, ''Fall of Babylon," in 1886 and 1888; "Rome 
Under Nero," 1877; "Moses, or the Bondag~ in Egypt," 1889, and 
"Montezuma, or the Conquest of Mexico," 1890, under the Order of 
Cincinnatus, were given in Brighton. John Rettig was their designer. 
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The Com-pilers of ~'Historic Brighton.'' 

JAMES D. SMI"rH. 
LOUIS W. SAUER. 

COL. MAX. MOSI,ER JACOB HOFFMANN. 
WEBB G. WEI,BORNE. 

MAX MOSLER, Presi,lent of the Brighton German Bank Company, came to 
Cincinnati from New York in 1850. He left school at an early age, but later attended 
night high school. He entered the army befor~ he was twenty-one years of age, and 
early in the war he was made Second Lieutenant of the 108th. Regiment, 0. V. I. 
Soon after he was taken prisoner, and upon his release he was compelled to retire 
from the service on account of physical disabilities, not, however, until he had ren­
dered service that was eminently satisfactory to his superiors and distinguishing to 
hin1self, entitling him tothe conspicuous position he hassince occupie<l in the G. A. R. 
and Loyal Legion. Mr. Mosler was the President of the first Board of Control in 
this County, and for ma_ny years was connected with the Mosler Safe and Lock Com- . 
pany. It was largely through his efforts that the dream of all Brighton manufactur­
ing an<l commercial interests was realized in the establishment of the Brighton Ger­
man Bank, of which he has been President since its organization and to the interests 
of which he now devotes his entire time. 

JACOB HOFFMANN, son of Philipp and Magdalena Hoffmann! was born on 
Wal nut near M_ercer, Sept. 1~, 1857,being the eldest and only surviving of ~ix ch!ldren. 
He came to Brighton \vtth Ins parents on January 25, 1859, and has hved tn the 
locality continuously. He was a pupil in the Fourteenth District School and the B 
grade of the Fourth Intermediate, completi~g his education in Gundry's commercial 
college. In 1875 Mr. Hoffmann entered the employ of Devou & Co., wholesc le milli-
1~ers as assistant entry clerk, later hecoming bookkeeper, which position he occupied 
until the firm discontinuen-business on December 31, 1880. On January 5 following 
be became the cashier and bookkeeper for the wholesale clothing firm Moch. Berman 
& Co .. which po~ition he now occupies. Mr. Hoffmann was 111arried July 8, 1885, to 
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Miss Eva M. Paul, and on January 1, 189H, he suffered the loss of his wife, their children, 
Louise, Magdalena, Charles and Clara. at that time ranging in age from six years to 
ten weeks, heing left to his care, in which he has hHd the loving assistance of his 
parents, who have been blessed with health unto a rich old age. 

JAMES D. SMITH was born in Cincinnati in 1858. In 1880 he started in the busi­
ness of manufacturing founrlry facings and supplies on Kindel Avenue, continuing 
there for twenty-one year~. In HJOl he removed his factory to Cleveland. Durin~ 
his long residence here there was no more loyal and public-spirited Brightonian than 
"Jim'' Smith. For two years he devoted considtrable time and energy to the publica­
tion of the ''Brighton Star", designed solely to advance the interests of the commu­
nity, in which appeared an "Original Short History of Brighton", of which he was 
the author. data taken from which assisted in the comoilation of this book. Mr. 
Smith for five years represented the Twelfth Ward in tlie Board of Education anu 
was a member of the Union Board of High Schools. 

\VEBB G. WELBORNE has for a numher of years been connected with the 
Commercial Tribune, of which he is now the Financial and l\rlarket Editor. Mr. 
Welborne is a native of Hoosierdom. He was oorn in Knightstown, Ind., where he 
atten<led the public schools. While yet a yo\lth he learnt d the "art preservative of 
arts'' and for a number of years worked at the case. He forsook his tr~de to become 
a newspaper correspondent. Mr. Welborne is a Trad~s Union man and for several 
years was the editor of the Lahar Department of the Commercial Tribune. 

LOUIS W. SAUER died during the progress of the work of compiling this book. 
He was a scholar, a public~spirited citizen and a loyal Brightonian. The community, 
the city and the world of learning suffered a loss in his death, and many individuals 
gave up a warm-hearted, genial. earnest and sympathetic friend. He was born at the 
corner of Fifth and John Strtets in 1862, was married to :Miss Carrie :Muth in 1884, 
and died, after a successful and commendable, though only too short, life, on October 
30, HJOl Mr. Sauer came to Brighton in 1880, soon after which he was placed in 
charge of the course on Pharmacology in the Cincinnati College of Medicine and 
Surgery. In 1896 he accepted the Ch!iir of Materia Medica and Toxicology in the 
Cincinnati College of Pharmacy. and up to the time of his death he ·was identified 
with both of these institutions of learning. 

VIEW OF BRIGHTON HILL. Photo by John Hoffmann, Jr., 1902. 
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